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VELOGIC HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATUTORY DISCILOSURES - YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Dear Shareholders,

The Board of Directors is pleased to present the Annual Report of Velogic Holding Company Limited and
its subsidiaries for the year ended June 30, 2021.

All shareholders agree that the Annual Report need not comply with paragraphs (a), and (d) to (i) of Section
221 (1) of the Companies Act 2001.

This report was approved by the Board of Directors on ......|5. D.QL@!}LLJAE..QQ;@:}« .......

/

—
Mr. Naveen Sangeelee
Director Director
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS
1. ESPITALIER-NOEL, MARIE HECTOR PHILIPPE

CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
(Born in 1965)

Date of Appointment: September 30, 2004

Qualifications
e BSc in Agricultural Economics (University of Natal, South Africa);
s MBA (London Business School).

Professional Journey
o  Worked for CSC Index in London as Management Consuoltant from 1994 to 1997;
» Joined Rogers in 1997,
s  Was appointed Chief Executive Officer of the Rogers Group in 2007;
s Attended Workers’ Right Act — March 2020 training.

Skills
e Proven experience of mergers and acquisitions, business turnaround and transformation;
* Extensive expertise with strategy development and execution;
» Inspiring leadership with senior management in the Rogers Group’s four served markets, FinTech,
» Hospitality, Logistics and Property;
o  Well versed in Corporate Governance.

2. KHADY, LIKA KONE-DICOH

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
{Born in 1981)

Date of Appointment: December 17, 2013

Qualifications

s  MSc in management from EMLYON
+ Master degree in business & corporate law from University Jean Moulin Lyon ITT
»  Accelerated Development Programme from London Business School

Professional journey

e 7 years with Société Générale Bank as Manager in the Mergers & Acquisitions department
dedicated to Emerging markets and French Midcaps where she originated and executed various
buy-side and sell-side M&A iransactions and privatizations in Africa and France

e Joined the private equity fund manager Amethis in 2013, where she has led many investments and
held board memberships across a diversity of sectors. Appointed Partner in January 2021, in
charge of deal sourcing and execution in West and Southern Affica.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS (CONT'D)

2.

Skills

3

KHADY, LIKA KONE-DICOH (CONT'D)

Strong managerial, accounting, legal and financial skills
Significant experience in the Strategic, business development and commercial field
Well versed in Corporate Governance

ESPITALIER-NOEL, MARIE EDOUARD GILBERT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
(Born in 1964)

Date of Appointment; July 18,2011

Qudlifications

BSc (University of Cape Town, South Africa);
BSc (Hons) (Louisiana State University, USA);
MBA (INSEAD Fontainebleau, France).

Professional Journey

Skills

Joined Food and Allied Group in 1990 and was appointed Group Cperations Director in 2000;
Joined the ENL Group in February 2007,

Was Chief Executive of ENL Property Ltd;

Currently CEO of New Mauritins Hotels Ltd.

Detailed knowledge of board matters;

Broad experience in business and financial skills;

Experienced non-executive director in several sectors;

Significant M&A experience locally and regionally;

Strong communications, entrepreneurial and strategic dimension skills;
Well versed in Corporate Governance.

4, NUNKOO,NAYENDRANATH

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
(Born in 1969)

Date of Appointment: June 21, 2011

Qualifications

L]

MBA majoring in Finance;

MSc in Engineering.

Professional Journey

Joined Rogers Group in 1993 and worked in various positions, namely in the Service Planning &
Development department, the Aviation and Logistics sectors, Enterprise Information Solutions;
Corporate Manager - Strategic Planning at the Head Office of Rogers and Company
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
4. NUNKOO, NAYENDRANATH (CONT’D)
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Skills
* Significant experience in the logistics and engineering sector both locally, regionally and in the
African market;
Broad experience in the strategic and business development field;
Strong managerial and financial skills,

5. RIGOUZZ0, LUC ANDRE EMMANUEL

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
(Born in 1963}

Date of Appointment: December 17, 2013

Qualifications
» holds degrees in both Agronomy and Finance

Professional Journey

e Devoted the first 14 years of his career to project finance in the agribusiness and food sectors of
emerging countries at Agence Frangaise de Développement and Proparco field offices and
Headquarters;

e Join the Agribusiness Department of the International Finance Corporation, {inancing projects in
Latin America and Africa

o Re-joined the Agence Frangaise de Développement Group in 2000 as deputy director for the
Mediterranean department and head of the department of non-sovereign, private and financial
sector successively;

Appointed as Chief of Staff for the French Minisiry for Development

Co-founded and Managing Partner of Amethis;

From June 2006 to December 2010, the CEO of Proparco, the French Development Financial
Institution specialized in long-term sustainabie investments to the private sector in emerging
countries; Was also Chairman of the Board of European Development Finance Institutions
(EDFI);

e Co-founder and Managing Partner of Amethis, a leading private equity fund manager dedicated to
Africa, with over 815m€ assets under management

¢  Over 30 years of experience in investing in emerging market companies.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
5. RIGOUZZO, LUC ANDRE EMMANUEL {(CONT’D)
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Skills
s Broad experience in the agronomy and hospitality sector;

» Significant experience in the strategic, sustainable development and business development fields
in the emerging market;

Strong accounting, risk management, managerial and financial skills
Well versed in Corporate Governance

6. SANGEELEE, NAVEEN

EXECUTIVE DPIRECTOR
(Born in 1968)

Date of Appointment: Angust 29, 2018

Qualifications
+  Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales (FCA);
Fellow Chartered Cerfified Accountants (FCCA);
Associate of Chartered Management Accountants (ACMA);
Masters in Business Administration, London (MBA);
BSc Economics & Computing, London (BSc Hons)

Professional Journey
* Joined Velogic in 2009, after having worked for a number of years in the United Kingdom for the
United Parcel Service Inc. and Warner Brothers Entertainment Group;
o Joined the logistics arm of Rogers and Company Limited in November 2009 as Business Process
Manager;
e  Was appointed Chief Finance Officer of Velogic Ltd since May 2011.

Skills
s Significant experience in board matters and govermance skills;
s  Strong accounting, financial and business skills;
s  Broad experience in risk & audit, strategic dimension and taxation
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PROFILE OF BDIRECTORS (CONT'D)
7. BHATT, MEHUL HITESHKUMAR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
{Born in 1980)

Date of Appointiment: February 27, 2020

Qualifications

s MBA, London Business School (Danish Maritime Fund Scholar)
BS, Nautical Sciences, BITS Pilani

Professional Journey

» Fellow of Institutc of Chartered Shipbrokers (FICS)
s  Agsociate Fellow of Nautical Institute (AFNI)

Skills
+ Significant experience in governance skills;
+ Strong HR, financial, entrepreneurial and business skills;
s DBroad experience in strategic dimension, International Exposure and Knowledge of FinTech
Business

8. CHELLAPERMAL, RADHAKRISHNA

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
(Born in 1955)

Date of Appointment: August 25, 2021

Qualifications

s  Fellow of the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants (FCCA)

Professional Journey

s  Chairperson of the Central Electricity Board
e Previously Deputy Financial Secretary at the Ministry of Finance

Skills
o Strong Accounting skills
e Significant experience in governance skills;
¢ Broad experience in leadership
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS (CONT'D)
9. BARBIER, VINCENT

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
(Born in 1966)

Date of Appointment: August 25, 2021

Qualifications

¢ General Engineer E.N.S.E.M. (National Schoo! of Electricity and Mechanics) Nancy, Electricity
and Mechanics, specialised in thermal engineering and fluid mechanics

¢ CEFA-MBA, Reims Management School (CEFA), MBA Degree at the Superior School of
Commerce. Specialised in international trade

*  English Language Programs, Berkeley (California), upgrading the English language in United
States

Professional Journey

¢ Founder of KORSO, development and management of projects with a special focus in energy and
environment activities

s Former CEO of VEOLIA ENERGIE CESKA REPUBLIKA and SLOVAKIA

¢ Former CEO of DALKIA

Skills
e Strong Business and Entrepreneurial skills
¢ Engineering skills
o Experience in sustainable development

10. MAMET, JEAN EVENOR DAMIEN

NON - EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
{Born in 1977)

Date of Appointment: April 28, 2017
Date of Resignation: June 21, 2021

Qualifications
¢ Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales

Professional Journey

o  Started his career with Ernst & Young in London in 1999;

¢ In 2003, he moved to BDO De Chazal Du Mee (Mauritius);

* In 2006, he was appointed Manager of Corporate Finance of PricewaterhouseCoopers;

» Joined Rogers Group where he was appointed Managing Director of Foresite Property Fund

» Management I.td in 2009 and was appointed Chief Projects & Development Executive of Rogers
in 2014;

e He was appointed Chief Finance Executive of Rogers in 2017.

»  Attended Workers” Right Act —March 2020 training.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS (CONT'D)
10. MAMET, JEAN EVENOR DAMIEN (CONT'D)
NON - EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Skills
¢ Detailed knowledge of the Group's activities and business having previously occupied the position
of Fund Manager;
Strategic and commercial understanding;
Team management skills;
Well versed in Corporate Governance.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

(Section 73 (3) of the Financial Reporting Act)

Name of Public Interest Entity (PIE}: Velogic Holding Company
LimitedReporting Period: July 1, 2020 to June 20, 2021

We, the directors of Velogic Holding Company Limited (*VHCL?), confirm that to the best of our
knowledge:

¢ Velogic Holding Comipatiy Limited (*VHCL”) is a subsidiary of Rogers and Conipany
Limited(*’"RCL"");

+ Throughout the year ended June 20, 2021, VHCL has complied the Corporate Governance
Code ofMauritins {(2016),

e VHCL has applied all of the principles set out in the Code and explained how these
principles havebeen applied.

Signed by:

Signature-~— //
Name _&iﬂ_i{m_-E.%{!i_‘iﬁﬂiﬁ_*_(.\lod Name:- _‘:L%E@gﬂ-.g.%aggle_e_ -
Chairperson Director

Date:--- 12 Oetembor_Jooy Date:--- 3 Detember_d0at
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Velogic Holding Company Limited (“VHCL” or the “Company™} is a public company limited by shares and is
the integrated international logistics platform of the Rogers group. It is a subsidiary of Rogers and Company
Limited (“Rogers™) and and is governed by the provisions of the Companies Act 2001.

Since ifs incorporatioh, VHCL has grown significantly in size and has proactively applied the Corporate
Governance principles in accordance with The Report on Corporate Governance for Mauritius (2004) and
thereafier The National Code of Corporate Governance for Mauritius (2016) within its business operations.

VHCL is a one-stop logistics platform with established capabilities and in-depth expertise to offer solutions that
make complex international trade seamless.

VHCL operates 35 offices with a workforce of 1,400 employees in 6 countries: France, India, Madagascar,
Singapore, Kenya and Mauritius, where it is headquartered. It also serves customers worldwide through a global
network of trusted partners.

VHCL and its subsidiaries offer a full range of integrated logistics solutions such as: freight forwarding, customs
clearance, haulage, warehousing (including bond and container freight station), courier services, container
handling and ship agency. Services offered also comprise stevedoring in Rodrigues and special sugar packing
in Mauritius. There were no major changes within the organisation compared to the previous year.

VHCL is also a public interest entity as defined by the Financial Reporting Act 2004 on the basis of its revenue
and assets.

At the time of approving this report, VHCL had already obtained the approvals of the regulatory authorities to
list its entire stated capital, i.e. 93,515,565 ordinary shares of no par value (the “Shares™), on the Development
& Enterprise Market (“DEM?”) of the Stock Exchange of Mauritius Ltd. by way of:

« an introduction of 61,935,359 Shares at a price of MUR 25.00 per Share; and
« an offer for sale of up to 31,580,206 Shares at an initial price of MUR 25.00 per Share.

The first day of trading is scheduled for 15 December 2021.
The shareholding of VHCL. is currently as follows:

s Rogers and Company Limited (‘Rogers”) with a 66.23% stake
»  Amethis Africa Finance Ltd (*Amethis’) with a 33.77% stake
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VHCL’s Business Model
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Served Market Overview

During the year under review, Velogic navigated through a challenging environment, plagued by renewed waves
of the pandemic in most of its key markets.

The freight forwarding sector volumes continued to be adversely impacted by the air cargo capacity crunch,
associated with airport lockdowns. Ocean freight situation was also difficult mainly due to demand and supply
imbalances for carrier space, global shortage of containers and congested logistics gateways that led to supply
chain disruptions. The capacity constraints gave rise 1o higher air and ocean freight buying rates and instability
of service from carriers. However, a significant surge in Courier services was noted as there was a general trend
by customers to move to e-commerce, despite the complexities of on- time deliveries because of unstable air
cargo capacity.

Under these unprecedentediy complex supply environment, Velogic managed to operate better than expected
taking full advantage of its agility to find solutions for its clients, allowing trade to continue as much as possible.
In addition, geographical diversification helped towards mitigating the negative effects as some geographies
were less impacted, namely, Kenya, where the business operated normally because confinement measures were
more lenient. There was a similar situation in India for about 8 months of the financial year until the company
being badly impacted by the Delta Covid-19 variant. In Madagascar, there was sizeable recovery of the export
sector compared to the last financial year.

The depreciation of the Mauritian Rupee against the hard currencies benefited the sugar packaging and container
handling activities, which have inflows in British pound and U.S. dollars respectively. Freight forwarding
segment was not impacted, being naturally hedged.

During the financial year, the “work-from-home” arrangements functioned well, with no disruptions to day-to-
day activities. These arrangements led to decreases in fuel and travel costs. With the staff becoming
increasingly well-versed with video conferencing and other communication technologies, this arrangement is
set to become a new normal at Velogic, and also help to reduce the carbon footprint. Velogic recognises the
importance of Envirommental, Social and governance (ESG) dimensions for the sustainability of its businesses
and it will continue to strive in order {0 implement and enhance its actions around these three pillars.
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Outlook

The global economic outlook for FY 2022 still looks uncertain with the unpredictable path of the pandemic.
The future performance of Velogic will depend on the sustainability of household consumption and trade
patterns in an unsettled environment. Freight forwarding volumes should increase as and when freight rates
start to decrease, with carrier addressing capacity issues for air and sea movements but there is no visibility to
when the rates will normalise to pre-pandemic levels.

On the local front, there should be a gradual recovery of the hospitality sector. This should provide an impetus
to import volumes as hotels replenish their stocks,

The performance of the warehousing and CFS activities will also depend on a potential recovery of the import
levels. The longer term growth for port services will depend on Mauritius becoming a maritime and logistics
hub but it is not yet clear how and when this will be achieved.

The container depot activity will handle lower volumes compared to the previous years, with the move of one
of its customers (MSC) to internalise this operation as from June 21. The appropriate measures have already
been initiated to mitigate the impact by optimising the confainer depot operafing areas and also, with the
consfruction of a new garage facility for the haulage activity on the spare land in Riche Terre to generate rental
savings of around Rs10m.

In Kenya, fature growth will be driven from the planned expansion of transport for bulk shipments and the
development of the distribution and fleet management tool with the on-boarding of new customers. In order to
pursue the success story of this venture, Velogic has completed the acquisition of the 49% minority stake in
October 2022.

In India, an extension of the geographical coverage through the opening of new offices and closer ties forged
with new agents through network associations should continue to generate incremnental business. The new trade
agreement between India and Mauritius, the “Comprehensive Economic Cooperation and Partnership
Agreement” (CECPA) represents an excellent opportunity to boost trade flows, hence the need for logistics
services.

Negotiations are on-going to find a strategic partner for our France operation in order to improve our
competitiveness in this mature market.

1. GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

1.1 The Board

The Board of VHCL assumes responsibility for leading and controlling the organisation and meeting all legal
and regulatory requirements.

As at June 30, 2021, VHCL was headed by a unitary board comprising of seven directors, under the
Chairmanship of Mr. Philippe Espitalier- Noél. Two non-executive independent directors, namely Messrs.

Radhakrishna Chellapermal and Mr Vincent Barbier were appointed to the Board on 25 August 2021,

Their profiles and directorship lists are available on htips://www.velogic.net.
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1. GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE (CONT’D)

1.1 The Board (Cont’d)

The Category of Directors as at June 30, 2021 and attendance are set out on page [4h] of the Corporate
Governance Report.

VHCL had adopted a number of policies, processes and procedures namely:
» its Data Protection Policy, Data Protection Notice and Data Protection Manual;
» the Code of Ethics of Rogers;
» the Information Technology and Information Security of Rogers;
» the Equal Opportunities Policy of Rogers;
* the Malpractice Reporting Policy of Rogers; and
« the other main Rogers Board policies

The policies are available on https://wwiv.rogers.mu/content/policies.

The Board had further adopted the following documents, which are available on hitps://www.velogic.net.

o QOrganisational chart

¢ Position statements of key senior governance positions

e Statement of accountabilities

o (Category of Directors and Balance of Skills

¢ Nomination Process and Appointment of Director

» Tenns and Conditions relating to the Appointment of Non-Executive Directors
e Board Charter

The monitoring and review processes of the aforesaid documents will be carried out by the Board of VHCL
as there are material changes brought to same.

1.2 Board Committees

Prior to the listing of VHCL, its Board had resolved that its governance matters as well as risk management,
internal control and audit matters be overseen by the Corporate Governance Committee (“CGC) and Risk
Management and Audit Committee (‘RMAC’) of Rogers.

The Board of VHCL agreed that such governance structure operates well and there will be no change thereto.
It was further resolved that the newly set up Sustainability and Inclusiveness Committee (‘SIC’) of Rogers
assist the directors of the Company in the performance of their duties.

The membership and terms of reference of the said committees are available on
hitps:/fiwww.rogers.mu/content/governance,

The CFO of VHCL will be a permanent attendee of the RMAC of Rogers for the Velogic part. The CEQ of
Velogic will have a standing invitation to attend the meetings of the SIC and CGC of Rogers. The Company

Secretaries of Rogers and Velogic will further coordinate to ensure timely flow of information between the
CGC, RMAC and SIC of Rogers and the Board of VHCL.,

1.3 Board Meetings

The attendance is set out on page [4h] of the Corporate Governance Report.
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1. GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE (CONT’D)

1.4 Appointment

The Board assumes the responsibilities for succession planning and for the appointment and induction of
new Directors to the Board.

All Directors will stand for re-election at the upcoming Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Company
(the “AMS’).

1.5 Induction and Orientation

Upon appointment to the Board, the new Director receives an induction pack from the Company Secretary.
An induction programme and orientation process is supervised by Senior Executives of the Company.

1.6 Professional Development

Directors are further encouraged to attend courses to refresh their knowledge and to keep abreast of latest
developments relating to their duties, responsibilities, powers and potential liabilities.

The following training workshops were held during the period under review:

- 12 November 2020: Changes in the Workers® Rights Act 2019 by Juristconsult Chambers
- 16 November 2020: AML/CFT update by Juristconsult Chambers

2. DIRECTORS DUTIES

The Directors are aware of their legal duties and may seek independent professional or legal advice, at the
expense of the Company, in respect of any aspect of their duties and responsibilities.

2.1 Interests of Directors and conflicts of interest
There is no formal conflict of interest policy. However, in any case of conflict of interest, the conflicted
directors disclose the nature and, when quantifiable, the amount, of their interest to the Board and same is

recorded in the minutes of proceedings of the meetings of the Board.

The Company Secretary maintains a conflict of interests register as well as an interests register. The latter
register is available for consultation to shareholders, upon written request to the Company Secretary.

2.2 Related party transactions

There is no formal related party transaction policy. The related party transactions are defined as per listing
rules, disclosed and recorded in the minutes of proceedings of the meetings of the Board.
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2. DIRECTORS’ DUTIES (CONT’D)

2.3 Board and Directors’ Evaluation

The Board resolved that no Board or Director’s evaluation be conducted for the year ended June 30, 2021.
This is mainly due to allow the Board to focus on the listing of the Company and review its Board
membership. Two new independent non-executive directors were conseguently appointed to the Board. The
Board was of the view that it would be in the best interest of the Board to provide adequate time to the
newly appointed directors to understand the board dynamics and businesses of the Company before
proceeding with such evaluation.

2.4 Directors’ remuneration

Furthermore, as a principle, the Executive and Non-Executive Directors of the Company who are employed by
either the Rogers Group or its associates and Amethis are not entitled to any directors’ fees. The independent
non-executive Directors perceive a fee of:

» Fixed monthly fee of MUR 13,000; and
» Attendance fee of MUR 20,000 per board attendance.

Furthermeore, there is no share option scheme or bonuses associated with the performance of the Company for
the Non-Executive Directors.

2.5 Company Secretary

The Company Secretary of the Company is Sharon Ah-Lin and her profile is available on the website of the
Company.

3. RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS (CONT’D)

VHCL has two shareholders and communication with them are done through open dialogue and at board

meetings. Furthermore, reports on the performance of VHCL and its subsidiaries are issued to the
shareholders on a monthly basis.

Management of VHCL interacts with other stakeholders such as suppliers, banks, government through open
dialogue as and when required. There is also direct interaction with clients and the use of social media is
optimised to inform them of new products and services.

Moreover, a dedicated Corporate Governance corner is created onto the website of the Company.
Shareholders and other stakeholders are welcomed to visit same to view and or download their relevant
information.

In line with Principle 8 of the Code, the voting result(s) of any Annual/Special Meeting of Shareholders of
VHCL will be made available on hittps:/www.velogic.net.
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31 Dividend Policy

VHCL aims to have a target payout of 40% of PAT , subject to its profitability, sufficient cash flow,
its foreseeable investment, capital expenditure and working capital requirements. During the year
under review, the Board of the Company had declared an interim dividend of Rs 22,000,000 and a final
dividend of Rs 19,000,000.

4. OTHER MATTERS

4.1 For Risk Governance and Intemal Control and Audit sections, please refer to pages [4i] of the Corporate
Governance Report.

4.2 Health and Safety — The Company and all subsidiaries are compliant to all local health and safety
regulations, which are in accordance with international guidelines. The health and safety of its
employees is the main priority of the Company. The business units of VHCL are well versed in
managing risks associated with Road Trausport, Warehousing and all other logistics related risks.

4.3 Corporate Social Responsibility and Social Matters- VHCL and its subsidiaries work to support social
enterprises in the field of waste management. Through such waste management programme,
contribution is made in strengthening and supporting the circular economy

4.4 Sustainability - VHCL and its subsidiaries are committed to Rogers’s engagement of “making the

world a better place than the one we inherited™ https://www.velogic.net/sustainability-inclusiveness/ .
The main focus is as follows:

Sustzinabiy & inglusivenaess
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Climate Circutar Economy inciusive
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3Rs of Waste
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Renewable Energy Employing people Provisien of educational
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4. OTHER MATTERS (CONT’D)

1. Circular economy: Implementation of the 3Rs (Reduce, Reuse, Recycle) of waste management.

2. Climate: Renewable Energy and Education

a} Renewable Energy (Rain water harvest, study on installation of solar panels and fuel efficiency).

b) Education {continuous defensive driving for our lorry drivers and sensitization for cleaning the planet
3. Inclusiveness: Employment and Education Support

a) Employing people from the vicinity

b) Providing Educational Support to needy employees’ children.

An Environmental Policy as well as a Procurement Policy which includes environmental criterion have been
established.

4.5 Charitable and Political Contributions — There was no charitable and political contribution made by
VHCL for the financial year under review.

Having taken into account all the matters considered by the Board and brought to its attention during the
year, the Board is satisfied that the AFS taken as a whole are fair, balanced and understandable.

5. CATEGORIES OF DIRECTORS AND ATTENDANCE AS AT JUNE 30, 2021

© | Philippe | ‘Gilbert | Khady-' | Damien ‘| Nayendra | Luc | Naveen | Memu
Espital r- | Lika Kone- | Mamet - .| nath " | Rigourzo *| Sangeclee | Bhatt =
e hpicoh e e Namkeo |
Appointment 17 28 17 29 27
Date Septembet 18 July December April 21 June December | August February
2004 2011 2013 2017 2011 2013 2018 2020
Chairman NED NED NED ED NED ED NED
Category and NED
Gender M M F M M M M M
Attendance 3/3 2/3 3/3 3/3 3/3 2/3 33 3/3
ED - Executive Director NED - Non-Executive Director
M - Male F - Female
N.B:
» The ED test was determined by using the criterion: A director involved in the day-to-day management of
the Company.

e The NED test was based on the criteria of Principle 2 of the Code.

e For the year under review, the Board is satisfied with 2 ED and 6 NED appointed to the Board of VHCL
given that the actual size and composition of the Board is, for the time being, optimal for the effective
supervision of its affairs.

{(a) Save for Mrs Khady-Lika Kone-Dicoh and Mr Luc Rigouzzo, the other directors reside in Mauritius.
(b) Attendance refers to the board meetings December 9, 2020, March 8, 2021 and June 21, 2021.

(¢) The Board skills matrix will be available on https://www.velogic.net.

(d) Directorship details are disclosed on the website of the Company.

*  Mr Damien Mamet resigned as director on 21 June 2021 at the end of the VHCL board meeting held on
the same day.
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6. RISK GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board of Directors is responsible for the governance of risks of the Velogic Group (Holding Company and
subsidiary companies) and for detennining the nature and extent of the principal risks it is willing to take in
achieving its strategic objectives. The Board is committed to continuously maintain adequate control procedures
with a view to safeguard the assets and reputation of the Group. Areas with high residual risks are continuously
assessed and reviewed.

Management is accountable to the Board for the design, implementation and enforcement of internal controls,
ensuring that the associated processes and systems are operating satisfactorily. The Board derives assurance that
the internal control systems are effective through the lines of defence:

(i) Peopile, Process and Technology;

(i1} Management and Oversight;

(ii1) Internal Audit; and

(iv) External Assurance.

The Risk Management and Audit Committee (RMAC) of the parent company (Rogers and Company Ltd-
‘Rogers’) and the Board of Velogic monitors the effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems.
The RMAC and the Board perform an oversight role to ensure that risks are managed effectively. Significant issues
including financial risks, critical policies, judgements and estimates are reviewed and discussed with the external
auditors. The appropriate financial reporting procedures are in place and are operating.

The monitoring of the effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems includes:
® A clear system of delegated authorities from the Board to management with certain important matters
remaining with the Board;
»  Regular review of results against budgets with executive directors and management, including areas of
business risk;
»  Review of the strategic plans to identify risks to the achievement of objectives and, where appropriate
any relevant mitigating actions; and
= Legal and compliance risks which are addressed through specific policies and training including ethics
and data protection laws
All significant areas of risk were covered and there were no major risks or deficiencies in Velogic’s system of
internal controls.
The existing group malpractice reporting policy sets out the process whereby information relating to
questionable practices within the group is disclosed in good faith by employees. Employees are encouraged to

raise such questionable practices to their direct reporting manager, to the Group Chief Human Resources
Executive and the Group CEO at Rogers.

Risk Management Process

The risk management process which is clearly defined, well established and embedded in our day-to-day
activities.
Identification, analysis and evaluation of risks
Risks are identified, analysed and evaluated in light of the probability of occurrence and their likely impact as
follows:
= Through regular management meetings whereby emerging/new and other operational and compliance
risks are identified as well as activities and processes that gave rise to the risks;
= During audits carried out by internal and external auditors or appointed specialist consultants;
»  Financial and Strategic risks are identified at time of preparation of the annual budget and strategic plan;
and
=  Self-assessment exercise performed by management.
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6. RISK GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL (CONT’D)

Treatment, monitoring and reporting

[41]

* Management devised appropriate mitigating strategies in light of the business model and set risk
appetite. Options available are discussed, evaluated and consequently, the Business Risk Register is
updated and reviewed. Implementation of remedial actions is performed and monitored.

* Legal and regulatory compliance risks which are addressed through specific policies and training;

*  Regular reporting, monitoring and review of the effectiveness of health and safety.

x  Principal risks are reported by management to the RMAC and to the Board.

* Risk & Audit department performs a follow up on progress on implementation of recommendations and
reports to the RMAC and the Board.

Prineipal Risks

The principal risks and their corresponding mitigating actions identified were as follows:

i s Descriptions and context ot L
Strategic risks RN Lo T

Lo Mitigating actions -

Economic
factors
market
condition

and

Current crisis (due to COVID-19) has the folléwing
potential adverse effects:

Further decline of the textiles sector in Mauritius
affecting the export activity in freight forwarding,
Lower household consumption and a stricken
hospitality sector leading to lower imports.

Increase in freight cost due to reduced capacities and
decreases in volume imported impacting demand.
Increase in level of competition in our served
geographies.

Containing costs fo mitigate the
impact on bottom line.

Continued diversification of the
customer base in freight forwarding
activities,

Ensure marketing capabilities and
review market strategies inclusive of
target markets.

Stakeholder
Engagement

Lack of engagement of strategic partners mav lead
to ineffective strategic decisions,

Managing stakeholders® expectations
through regular communications and
clear understanding of expectations.

Client
Concentration

Certain activities are concentraied and dependent on

Ongoing efforts to diversify the client

“Financial risks

some major clients.

base and use of assets.

Financial
sustainability

Non-performing Investments

Loss making businesses that need turnaround.
Impact of a challenging business and economic
environment in France.

Cost containment measures taken and
focusing on potential partnerships,
Looking for new  partnership
opportunities for business in France.

Credit

Credit risk will increase with the worsening of the
economic climate.

Credit risk constantly monitored, and
the Company works on a cash basis for
high-risk clients.

Credit protection insurance in place in
geographies, where the protection is
available.

Foreign
Exchange

The Group operates internationally and is exposed
to foreign exchange nsk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to Euro,
British pound and US Dollar. Fluctuations in foreign
currency can impact costs, revenue and net assets.

Natural hedge in the freight forwarding
sector.

Hedging instruments
mitigate risks

utilized to

Liquidity

Inability to meet financial obligations and loan
covenants.
Working capital management

Cost containment measures
implemented for cash preservation
More stringent Credit facilities to
customers

Continued efforts to improve treasury
management
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6. RISK GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL (CONT’D)
. Operational risks R N R _ : S
Information »  Disruptive technologies and evolving cyber threats » Automating processes to derive

Technology & impacting on businesses. efficiencies.
Security »  Implementation of its Security policy
and close monitoring of cyber threats
Business *  Business disruptions due to the following: » Business continuity, crisis management
Continuity - Pandemic waves. plan and adequate insurance is in place.
- Man-made environmental disasters (e.g. oil
spills due Lo shipwreck).
- Fire,
- Social unrest:  Increasing level of
unemployment, unpopular policy measures
paving the way to protests, riots and looting.
- Supply chain disruptions in clients’ businesses
leading to decrease in demand for logistic
SETVICES.
Climate = Climate change and its effects impact our business. * On-going engagement to understand
Change Increasingly, the interconnected and lasting impacts needs and concems. Strategic plan is
of climate change are placing pressure on businesses being devised to ensure our models are
to both minimise the impact, as well as ensure that sustainable.
their future operating model will remain relevant as
consumers shift behaviours to minimise their carbon
impact.
Talent = Loss of key personnel and lack of succession plan = Several ongoing measures such as
Engagement for key executives and management. continuous training, to ensure key
*» Lack of adequate/missing skills in business and personnel are engaged.
capability gaps in current teams. » (Capability gaps are identified and
recriitment is done accordingly.
Health and = Road transport accidents leading to serious injuries ® Action plan in terms of Safety
Safety and environmenial disaster preveniive measures is regularly
reviewed.
*» Road transport safety management
system is being developed.
Compliance risks = P e e L S S T R B TR
Legal and = Non-adherence to existing or new legislations and * Communication and awareness session
regulatory regulations. on impact of new legislations provided.
»  Changes in laws and regulations not communicated ® Reinforcing internal controls and
and training not provided. adequate segregation of duties.
= Non-compliance with internal controls. » Training and awareness programme.
Internal Audit

Internal audit function which is outsourced to the Rogers, reports directly to the RMAC and ensures adherence
of processes and controls fo the Rogers Guidelines & Policies Manual. One of the responsibilities of the internal
audit function is to confirm to the RMAC the effective operation of our internal control system. For this purpose,
the Head of Intemnal Audit makes quarterly presentations to the RMAC and meets regularly with the Chairman
of the Committee without the presence of management.

The internal audit team also reports to the Board of Directors of Velogic following audits carried out. Risk based
audit was carried out during the financial year for the frecport operations which was in line with the established
audit methodology and the following areas were covered:

»  Revenue

»  Debtors’ Management
®  Cash and Bank
= Trade Payables
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6. RISK GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL (CONT’D)

Audit plan and department

Internal audit plan is prepared using a risk-based approach which includes the changes in risk profiles and
emerging risks. The plan is set for three years and is reviewed and approved by the RMAC on an annual basis
to incorporate the changing risk landscape.

Audit reports and recommendations are prepared following each audit and appropriate measures are then taken
to ensure that all recommendations are implemented. Status reports on management’s implementation of
internal audit recommendations are provided to the RMAC on a quarterly basis. Members of the internal audit
team are qualified or partly qualified accountants. The structure and qualifications of the key members of the
Risk & Audit Department is detailed on the Rogers website.

There were no major limitations or restrictions in the audit scope, access to records, management and employees.

No material shortcomings in the design and effectiveness of internal controls, govermnance and risk management
were reported during the year.

External Audit

Appointment
EY was appointed as external anditors on 19 April 2021 for the current financial year, in replacement of KPMG.

The latter did not stand for re-election.

Effectiveness
External audit process, planning, observations, recommendations, and accounting principles are evaluated and
discussed with the Risk Management and Audit Committee.

Non-audit services

For the year under review, there were no non-audit services rendered by the external auditor, EY.
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for:

(i) adequate accounting records and maintenance of effective internal control systems;

{ii) the preparation of financial statements which fairly present the state of affairs of the Company
as at theend of the financial vear, the results of its operations and the cash flows for the year
and which comply with International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS), International
Accounting Standards and the Companies Act;

(iii) the selection of appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent
Judgements and cslimales.

The external auditors are responsible for reporting on whether the financial statements are fairly
presented. The Directors report that:

(i) adequate accounting records and an effective system of internal control and risk management
have beenmaintained while an internal audit function has been established;

(ii) appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates
have been used consistently;

(iif) International Financial Reporting Standards have been adhered to. Any departure has been
disclosed,explained and quantified in the interest of fair presentation; and

(iv) the National Cude ol Corpurate Governance for Mauritius (2010} Lias beerr aéhered to in &ll
materialaspects.

ONBEHALF OF THE BOARD

Date: ... .. 13 Decomber, 2020, ...
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In my capacity as Company Secretary of Velogic Holding Company Limited (‘the Company’), I hereby
confirm that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the Company has filed with the Registrar of
Companies, for the financial year ended June 30, 2021, all such returns as are required of the Company

under the Companies Act 2001.

Company Secretary
Ms. Sharon Ah Lin, ACG (ICSA:UK)
No.5, President John Kennedy Street, Port-Louis, Mauritios

Date: ... \3 Dacember 208t
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF VELOGIC HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

We have audited the Consolidated and separate financial statements of Velogic Holding Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 20 to 108 which comprise the consolidated and
separate statements of financial position as at 30 June 2021, and the consolidated and separate statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated and separate statements of changes in equity and
consolidated and separate statements of cash flows for the period then ended, and notes to the consolidated and
separate financial statements, including significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
and separate financial position of Group and Company as at 30 June 2021, and of its consolidated and separate
financial performance and consolidated and separate cash flows for the period then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and comply with the Companies Act 2001 and the Financial
Reporting Act 2004.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (the “IESBA Code”) and other
independence requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements of the Group and Company
and in Mauritius. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and in
accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of the Group and Company and in
Mauritius. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
and separate financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF VELOGIC HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Key Audit Matters applies equally to the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements.

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in the audit

Impairment of goodwill and investments
in subsidiaries

The carrying amount of goodwill
recognised at Group level amounted to Rs
458.8m as at 30 June 2021 and
investments in subsidiaries in the separate
financial statements of the Company
amounted to Rs 1,041m as at the same
date. Disclosures around the impairment
assessment of goodwill and subsidiaries
and cash generating units are set out in
notes 7 and 8 of the financial statements
respectively.

A cash generating unit (“CGU”) to which
goodwill has been allocated must be tested
for impairment at least annually in
accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of
Assets, by comparing the carrying amount
of the CGU, including the goodwill, with
the recoverable amount of the unit. The
determination of the recoverable amount,
being the higher of value-in-use and fair
value less costs to sell, requires judgement
on the part of management in both
identifying and then valuing the relevant
CGUs.

There is the risk that management may
influence the significant judgements and
estimations in respect of business
valuations in order to meet market
expectations of the overall Net Asset
Value of the Company.

The risk has increased in the current year
due to the timing and uncertainty of the
COVID - 19 pandemic and the consequent
impact on valuations.

A similar process applies to the
impairment of investments in subsidiaries
held at Company level.

Variations in the estimates and
assumptions may result in significant
impact on the reported results and
relevant assets.

Due to the significant judgments that need
to be applied we have considered the
impairment of goodwill and investments in
subsidiaries as a key audit matter.

We evaluated the operation of the management’s controls over
the impairment assessment process.

Our audit procedures included challenging management on the
appropriateness of the impairment model and reasonableness of
the assumptions used through performing the following:

= We reviewed management determination of CGUs for
impairment assessment purpose.

= We obtained management’s impairment assessment and
tested the arithmetical accuracy of the computations.

= With the involvement of our valuation specialists, we
appraised the method used in calculating the value in use, the
discount factor used, the forecasts used, and the
assumptions adopted therein.

= We verified the forecasts used by management with
reference to historical data and market developments,
challenging growth rates.

= We performed a sensitivity analysis on the significant inputs
to assess the range of acceptable valuations in each CGU.

= We reviewed the allocation of impairment to the underlying
related assets

= We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures made in the
financial statements

= We have also considered the impact of COVID - 19
throughout the procedures performed on the valuation by
challenging whether the valuation methodologies and
assumptions used remained appropriate.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF VELOGIC HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in the audit

Expected credit loss under IFRS 9

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments requires an
entity to incorporate reasonable and
supportable information about past
events, current conditions and forecasted
future economic conditions into the
assessment of expected credit losses
(“ECL”) for trade and other receivable,
including amounts receivable from related
parties. Such an assessment should be
based on information at the reporting date
and adjusted for subsequent available
information where applicable. ECL is a
probability weighted amount that is
determined by evaluating a range of
possible outcomes.

ECL provisions on trade and other
receivable as at 30 June 2021 amounted
to Rs 124.7m (June 30, 2020: Rs 111m)
as per note 12. ECLs are calculated both
for individually significant receivables and
collectively on a portfolio basis which
require the use of statistical models
incorporating loss data and assumptions
on the recoverability of customers’
outstanding balances.

The Covid-19 pandemic has given rise to
uncertainty in the economic conditions
and IFRS 9 requires management to
incorporate forecasts of future economic
conditions on a probability weighted basis.
The Group has refined its model to take
into account the severity and potential
impact of the pandemic on the expected
losses of financial assets.

The calculation of ECLs is complex and
involves several judgmental assumptions.
As aresult, ECL calculation been identified
as a key audit matter.

Refer to notes 2.13 and 12 to the
consolidated financial statements for the
accounting policies and the relevant
disclosures.

Procedures performed in respect of expected credit losses:

We verified whether the ECL methodology developed by
management for trade and other receivables and amounts
receivable from related parties are consistent with the
requirements of IFRS 9.

We tested management’s key assumptions and judgments
used in the models to determine the expected credit loss such
as the loss rate by comparing these to historical data. We also
ensured the completeness and internal consistency of data
used and its mathematical accuracy by performing the
following procedures:

0 testing the age buckets of the balances due for the
relevant periods

0 agreeing the balances at year end to source data such as
the general ledger

o verifying that the formulae were properly applied
throughout to obtain the expected credit loss

0 testing the classification of insured debtors against
relevant insurance contracts, verifying whether the
Group’s clients are within relevant insurance thresholds.

We involved our IFRS 9 modelling specialists to validate the
methodology used by management as well as major
assumptions used (e.g. forward-looking information used by
management).

Our IFRS 9 modelling specialists have evaluated the
reasonability of assumptions and judgements applied in
Management’s qualitative and quantitative assessment of
external events in light of recent economic events and
circumstances (Covid-19).

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF VELOGIC HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
Companies Act 2001 and the Financial Reporting Act 2004, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Group and Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group
and the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated and separate financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group and the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group and Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated and separate financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF VELOGIC HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (Continued)

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Section 205 of the
Companies Act 2001. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Other matter
The financial statements of Velogic Holding Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)

for the year ended 30 June 2020 were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements on 09 April 2021.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF VELOGIC HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
Companies Act 2001

We have no relationship with or interests in the Company other than in our capacity as auditor and dealings in
the ordinary course of business.

We have obtained all the information and explanations we have required.

In our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as it appears from our
examination of those records.

{omst 4 M \L@

ERNST & YOUNG THIERRY LEUNG HING WAH, F.C.C.A.
Ebéne, Mauritius Licensed by FRC

Date: 13 December 2021

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION - JUNE 30, 2021
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
Notes 2021 2020 2421 2020
ASSETS Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment * 975,973 963,090 - -
Right-of-use assets * 6(a) 255,445 353,310 - -
Intangible assets 7 586,717 595,141 - -
Investment in subsidiaries 8 - - 1,041,214 1,099,211
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income .9 . 3,209 2,715 - -
Deferred tax assets 10 21,998 28,176 - -
1,843,342 1,942,432 1,041,214 1,099,211
Current assets
Inventories 11 25,251 34,850 - -
Trade receivables 12 858,826 859,757 - -
Contract assets ** 13 46,441 38,600 -
Financial assets at amortised cost ¥* 14 143,981 107,589 52,099 54,745
Other assets 15 84,942 37,511 24,972 15,292
Current tax assets 16 24,350 23,184 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 30(b) 473,681 329,639 6,085 5,790
1,657,472 1,431,130 83,156 75,827
Total assets 3,500,814 3,373,562 1,124,370 1,175,038
FINANCED BY
Capital and reserves
Share capital 17 1,019,294 1,019,294 1,019,294 1,0£9,294
Other reserves 18 260,004 225,715 (58,047 -
Retained carnings 318,031 244,088 22,783 15,277
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 1,597,329 1,489,097 984,030 1,034,571
Non-controlling interests 213,429 172,487 - -
Total equity 1,810,758 1,661,584 984,030 1,034,571
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 19 90,688 201,245 40,909 -
Lease liabilities *** 6(b) 207,768 267,305 - -
Deferred tax liabilities 10 86,880 92,107 - -
Retirement benefits obligations 20 58,087 89,460 - -
443,423 650,117 20,909 .
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables #+++ 21 851,186 615,397 38,808 27,930
Contract liabilitieg *#4* 22 14,897 20,039 - -
Current tax liabilities i6 30,312 20,350 307 33
Borrowings 19 271,282 303,504 41,316 97,504
Lease linbilities ¥% 6(b) 58,000 87,346 - .
Dividend payable 23(a) 20,956 15,225 19,0060 15,000
1,246,633 1,061,861 99,431 140,467
Total labilities 1,690,056 1,711,978 140,340 140,467
Total equity and liabilities 3,500,814 3,373,562 1,124,370 1,175,038

* See note 6(f); ** See note 13(c); *¥** See note 6(g); ¥*** See note 22(b)

These financial statements have been approyed-b

Mr. Nayendrihath Nuikoo
Director

The notes on pages 20 to 108 form an integral part of these financial statements,
Auditor's report on pages 7 to 12,

¢ Board of Directors on 1D, 02terher 102

and F1gned on its behalf by:

- "
Wangeelee
Director
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STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS - YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
Notes 2021 2020 2021 2020
Rs"000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
TOTAL INCOME 24 3,760,469 3,122,730 64,372 40,222
Revenue from sale of services 24 3000, 155 3,013,424 - -
Direct costs 25 (2,439942)  (1,934,576) - -
1,267,813 1,138,848 - -
Commuission and other income 49,568 45,558 - -
Dividend and interest income 3,146 3,748 04,372 40,222
1,320,527 1,188,154 64,372 40,222
Employee benefit expense 26 (701,056) (644,541) - -
Depreciation of:
-property, plant and equipment 5 (88,964) (84,827) ~ -
-right-of-use assets 6 (95,500) (94,866) - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 7 (9,931) (10,183) - -
Net impairment loss on financial assets 12{a) (9,300) (27,907) - -
Other expenses 25 (187,820) (164,018) {10,735) (942)
Operating profit 227,456 161,812 53,037 39,280
Ne. forcign exchange
transactions gains/{losses) 27,328 31,408 {2,881) 188
Finance costs 27 (41,571) (50,350) (1,943) {1,824)
Profit before tax 28 213,213 142,870 48,813 37,644
Taxation 16(b) (62,161) (38,380) (307 36
Profit for the year 151,052 104,490 48,506 37,680
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 114,943 74,090 48,500 37,680
Non-controlling interests 36,109 30,400 - -
151,052 104,490 48,506 37,680
Earnings per share (Rs.) 20 1.23 0.79

The notes on pages 20 to 108 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Auditor's report on pages 7 to 12.
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STATEMENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
Notes 2021 2020 2021 2020

Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Profit for the year 151,052 104,490 48,506 37,680
Other comprehensive income:
Tiems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Gain on revaluation of land and buildings 5 - 79,464 - -
Change in fair value of equity
instruments at fair value through OCI 9(a) - 1,518 - -
Remeasurement of post employment
benefit obligations 20 34,746 (16,735) - -
Related tax 10(b) {5,073) (8,211) - -
Iiems that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation differences 14,781 6,010 - -
Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax 44,454 62,046 - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 195,506 166,536 48,506 37,680
Total comprehensive income attributabie to:
Equity holders of the parent 149,232 119,647 48,506 37,680
Non-controlling interests 46,274 46,889 - -

195,506 166,536 48,506 37,680

The notes on pages 20 to 108 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Auditor’s report on pages 7 to 12.
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18
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY - YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(b) THE COMPANY Share Amalgamation Retained
Notes capital reserve earnings Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
@ 2021
Balance at July 1, 2020 1,019,294 - 15,217 1,034,571
Profit for the year - - 48,506 48,506
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 48,506 48,506
Amalgamation adjustment 8(b) - (58,047) - (58,047)
Dividends 23 - - {41,000) (41,000)
At June 30, 2021 1,019,294 (58,047) 22,783 984,030
(i) 2020
Balance at July 1, 2019 1,019,294 - 16,947 1,036,241
Profit for the year - - 37,680 37,680
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the. year - - 37,680 37,680
Transfer
Dividends 23 - - (39,350) (39,350)
At June 30, 2020 1,019,294 - 15,277 1,034,571

The notes on pages 20 to 108 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Auditor's report on pages 7 to 12.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
Notes 2021 2020 2021 2020

Rs'0060 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from/(absorbed in} operations 30(a) 596,934 478,937 (2,324) {596)
Interest paid (23,718) (46,472) (1,943) (1,824)
Interest received 24 3,146 3,748 1,196 1,086
Income tax paid 16(a) (60,673) (50,202) {33) (58)
Income tax refunded 16(a) 3,728 - - -
Net cash generated from/
(absorbed in) operating activities 519,417 386,011 (3,104) (1,392}
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired 32(a)(iii) - (263) - -
Investment in subsidiaries 32(b)/8(a) - {11,650) (50) (67.,940)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 5 (95,403) (97,098) - -
Purchase of intangible assets 7 (1,347 (13,608) - -
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment 9472 8,140 - -
Dividends received - - 53,101 44,608
Loans granted to related parties - - (772) 819
Loan repayments received from related parties - - 3,399 32,000
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities (87,278) {114,479 55,678 7,849
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 30(c) 170,519 188,106 17,959 24,231
Payments of borrowings 30(c) (243,707  (310,867) (16,876) (1,730)
Loan received from related parties 30(c) - 126,250 3,500 19,000
Loan repaid to related parties 30(c) (38,641) (13,371) (6,876) (18,000)
Principal paid on lease liabilities 30(c) (95,693) (87,706) - -
Interest paid on lease liabilities 30(c) {17,853) (17,485} - -
Dividends paid to company's shareholders 23 {37,000) {44,350) {37,000) (44,350}
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 23 (3,601) (5,312) - -
Net cash used in financing activities (265,976)  (164,735) (39,293) (20,849)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents. 166,163 106,797 13,281 - (14,392}
Movement in cash and cash equivalents
At July 1, 238,004 107,606 (6,236) 5,672
Increase/(decrease) 166,163 106,797 13,281 (14,392)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 28,917 23,601 (960) 2,484
At June 30, 30(b) 433,084 238,004 6,085 (6,236)

The notes on pages 20 to 108 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Auditor's report on pages 7 to 12.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2021

2.1

)
(i)
(i1i)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Velogic Holding Company Limited is & limited liability company incorporated in the Republic of Mauritius on
September 30, 2004 as a management and investment company for the Logistics Autonomous Division of Rogers &
Company Limited. The immediate holding company is Rogers and Company Limited, the intermediate holding is
Rogers Consolidaled Shareholding Limited and its ultimate holding company is Sociéié Caredas, all companies are
incorporated in the Republic of Mauritius. Its registered office is situated at No.5 President John Kennedy Street, Port
Louis.

These financial statements will be submitted for consideration and approval at the forthcoming Annual Meeting of
Shareholders of the Company on .....coccovvcorvrrreneerennns

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. The
policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented in these consolidated financial statements unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of Velogic Holding Company Limited comply with the Mauritius Companies Act 2001, the
Financial Reporting Act 2004 and have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) under the going concern basis.

The financial statements include the consolidated financial statements of the parent company and its subsidiaries (The
Group) and the separate financial statements of the parent company (The Company).

The financial statements are presented in Mauritian Rupees and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(Rs'000), except when otherwise indicated.

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, except that:
tand and building are carried at revalued amounts;

retirement benefit obligations; and

relevant financial assets and financial liabilities are stated at their fair value.

The accounting policies apply to both the Group and the Company unless otherwise stated.

Amendments to published Standards effective in the reporting perviod

Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3) clarifies the definition of a business to help determine whether a
transaction should be accounted for as a business combination or an asset acquisition and permits, in certain

circumstances, a simplified assessment that an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The amendments
have no impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

2.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Basis of preparation (cont'd)
Amendments to published Stundards effective in the reporting period (cont'd)

Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8) clarifies the definition of material and aligns the definitions
used across IFRSs and other IASB publications. The amendments have no impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7) provides relief from certain hedge
accounting requirements in order to avoid unnecessary discontinuation of existing hedge relationships during the
period before the replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark with an alternative interest rate. The amendments
have no impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards relate to minor amendments to various
standards to reflect the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting. The amendments have no impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 16)

The Group’s has elected to utilise the practical expedient for all rent concessions that meet the criteria. The practical
expedient has been applied retrospectively, meaning it has been applied to all rent concessions that satisfy the criteria
during the year ended June 30, 2021.

Accounting for the rent concessions as lease modifications would have resulted in the Group’s remeasuring the lease
liability to reflect the revised consideration using a revised discount rate, with the effect of the change in the lease
liability recorded against the right-of-use asset. By applying the practical expedient, the Group’s is not required to
determine a revised discount rate and the effect of the change in the lease liability is reflected in profit or loss in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the rent concession occurs. The effect of applying the practical
expedient is disclosed in note 6.

Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9 (Amendments to IFRS 4) extends the temporary
exemption to accounting periods beginning before January 1, 2023. The amendments have no impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective

Certain standards, amendments o published standards and interpretations have been issued that are mandatory for
accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021 or later periods, but which the Group has not early adopted.

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (dmendments to IFRS 10 and
145 28)

The amendments address the conflict between IFRS 10 and TIAS 28 in dealing with the loss of control of a subsidiary
that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The amendments clarify that the gain or loss resulting from
the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a business, as defined in IFRS 3, between an investor and its associate
or joint venture, is recognised in full. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that do not
constitute a business, however, is recognised only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint
venture. The LASB has deferred the effective date of these amendments indefinitely, but an entity that early adopts the
amendments must apply them prospectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

2.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Basis of preparation (cont'd)

Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective (cont’d)
At the reporting date of these financial statements, the following were in issue but not yet effective:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

In May 2017, the IASB issued IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (IFRS 17), a comprehensive new accounting standard for
insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. In June 2020, the IASB issued
amendments to IFRS 17. These amendments included changing the effective date to 2023. Once effective, IFRS 17
will replace IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (IFRS 4) that was issued in 2005, IFRS 17 applies to all types of insurance
contracts (i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type of entities that issue them, as well
as to ceriain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation features. A few scope exceptions
will apply. The overall objective of IFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts that is more
useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in IFRS 4, which are largely based on grandfathering
previous local accounting policies, IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all
relevant accounting aspects. The core of IFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented by:

* A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach)

+ A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts

IFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023, with comparative figures required.
Early application is permitted, provided the entity also applies IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 on or before the date it first applies
IFRS 17.

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendmenis to I45 1)

In January 2020, the IASB issued amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of IAS 1 to specify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments clarify:

+  What is meant by a right to defer settlement

»  That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period

= That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right

+  That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument would the terms of a

liability not impact its classification

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023 and must be applied
retrospectively. The Group is currently assessing the impact the amendments will have on current practice and whether
existing loan agreements may require renegotiation.

Annual Improvements 2018-2020

= IFRS 1 - permits a subsidiary that elects to apply paragraph D16(a) of IFRS 1 to measure cumulative translation
differences using the amounts reported by the parent, based on the parent’s date of transition to IFRS. An entity
applies the amendment for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022. Earlier application is
permitted.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

2.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Basis of preparation (cont'd)
Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective (cont’d)

Annual Improvements 2018-2020 (cont'd)

= IFRS 9 - clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financial
liability are substantially different from the terms of the original financial liability. An entity applies the
amendment for annual reporting periods beginning on or after Januvary 1, 2022. Earlier application is permitted.

»  IAS 41 - removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of TAS 41 that entities exclude cash flows for taxation when
measuring the fair value of assets within the scope of IAS 41. An entity applies the amendment to fair value
measurements on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting pericd beginning on or after January 1, 2022,
Earlier application is permitted.

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Infended Use (Amendments to I4S 16)

In May 2020, the 1ASB issued Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use, which prohibits entities
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment, any proceeds from selling items produced while
bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management, Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling such items, and the costs of producing those
itemns, in profit or loss.

The amendment is =ffective for winual veporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022 and must he applied
retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the beginning of the
earliest period presented when the entity first applies the amendment.

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to I45 37)
In May 2020, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 37 to specify which costs an entity needs to include when assessing
whether a contract is onerous or loss-making.

The amendments apply a “directly related cost approach”. The costs that relate directly to a contract to provide goods
or services include both incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly related fo contract activities. General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the
counterparty under the contract.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after Januvary 1, 2022. The Group will
apply these amendments to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.

Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3)

In May 2020, the TASB issued Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Reference to the Conceptual
Framework. The amendments are intended to replace a reference to the Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements, issued in 1989, with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly changing its requirements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

2

21

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Basis of preparation (cont'd)
Standards, Amendments fo published Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective (cont'd)

The Board also added an exception to the recognition principle of IFRS 3 to avoid the issue of potential ‘day 2° gains
or losses arising for liabilities and contingent Habilities that would be within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 Levies,
if incurred separately. At the same time, the Board decided to clarify existing guidance in IFRS 3 for contingent assets
that would not be affected by replacing the reference to the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements.

Definition of accounting estimates (Amendments to IAS 8)

In February 2021, the Board issued amendments to IAS 8, in which it introduces a new definition of ‘accounting
estimates’. The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting
policies and the correction of errors. Also, they clarify how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to IAS I and IFRS Practice Statement 2

In February 2021, the Board issued amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality

Judgements (the PS), in which it provides guidance and examples to help entities apply materiality judgements to

accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are

.more nseful by:

+  Replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to
disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies; and

*  Adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy
disclosures.

Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction (145 12)

In May 2021, the Board issued amendments to IAS 12, which narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception
under TAS 12, so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences. The amendments clarify that where payments that settle a liability are deductible for tax purposes, it is a
matter of judgement (having considered the applicable tax law) whether such deductions are attributable for tax
purposes to the liability recognised in the financial statements (and interest expense) or to the related asset component
(and interest expense). This judgement is important in determining whether any temporary differences exist on initial
recognition of the asset and liability.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022 and apply
prospectively.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)

On 27 August 2020, the IASB published Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2, Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39,
IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16. With publication of the phase two amendments, the IASB has completed its work in
response to IBOR reform.

The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects when an interbank offered rate
(IBOR) is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free interest rate (RFR),
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED JUNE 39, 2021

2.1

2.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONT'D)

Basis of preparation (cont'd)

Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective (cont'd)
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16) (cont'd)

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021 . The Group will
apply these amendments at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.

Covid-19-related rent concessions beyond 30 June 2021

In March 2021, the Board amended IFRS 16 to extend the availability of the practical expedient by one year (2021
amendment). The practical expedient in the 2021 amendment applies to rent concessions for which any reduction in
lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022, provided the other conditions for
applying the practical expedient are met. The amendment applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
April 2021,

Where relevant, the Group is still evaluating the effect of these Standards, Amendments to published Standards and

Interpretations issued but not yet effective, on the presentation of its financial statements.
Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings, held for use in the production or supply of goods or for administrative purposes, are stated at its
fair value based on periodic, but at least triennial valuations, by external independent valuers, less subsequent
depreciation for buildings. At the date of revaluation, the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. All
other property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairments, Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets' carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably.

A revaluation surplus is recorded in other comprehensive income (OCI) and credited to the asset revaluation surplus in
equity. However, to the extent that it reverses a revaluation deficit of the same asset previously recognised in profit or
loss, the increase is recognised in profit and loss. A revaluation deficit is recognised in the statement of profit or loss,
except to the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset recognised in the asset revaluation surplus.

Depréciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write off the cost of the assets to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives. It is applied at the following useful lives:

Freehold buildings and buildings and yards on leasehold land 7 - 50 years
Plant and equipment 5-12 years
Motor vehicles 4 -5 years

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 4 - 6.67 years
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
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2.3

(2)

(b)

24

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Property, plant and equipment (cont'd)
Freehold land is not depreciated.

The assets' residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount,

Gains and losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying
amount and are included in profit or loss. On disposal of revalued assets, the amounts included in revaluation surplus
are transferred to retained earnings.

Contract liabilities/contract assets

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).

A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue earned from services beoause the veceipt of consideration is
conditional on successful completion of the services. Upon completion of the services and acceptance by the customer,
the amount recognised as coniract assets is reclassified to trade receivables.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment of financial assets in
section 2.13.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in
profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible asscts are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in the expense category that is consistent with the function of the intangible assets.
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2.5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Intangible assets (cont'd)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made
on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
statement of profit or loss.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see note 2.5} less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of Impairment testing.

On disposal of a subsidiary, the atiributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the gains and losses
on disposal.

Computer software
Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software and are amortised using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives (3 - 5 years).

Concession rights
Concession rights acquired by the Group are initially recorded at cost and amortised over their estimated useful lives (7
- 60 years).

Customer related intangibles
Customer related intangibles acquired by the Group are initially measured at fair value at the date of acquisition and
amortised cost over their estimated useful lives (7-10 years).

Investment in subsidiaries
Separate financial statements of the Company

In the separate financial statements of the Company, investment in subsidiary companies are carried at cost. The
carrying amount is reduced to recognise any impairment in the value of individual investments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Investment in subsidiaries (cont'd)

Consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at June
30, 2021. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

*  Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee)

*  Exposure, or rights, to variable refurns from its involvement with the investee

*  The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this presumption and
when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

*  The contractual arrangement(s) with the other vote holders of the investee

*  Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

*  The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whuiher or not it controls an investee if facts aud circums:ances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the
date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of OCI are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
if the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, non-

controlling interest and other components of equity, while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any
mvestment retained is recognised at fair value.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.5 Investment in subsidiaries (cont'd)

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, which is measured at acquisition date fair value, and the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and included in administrative expenses.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set of activities and assets include an input and
a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The acquired process is
considered substantive if it is critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, and the inputs acquired include an
organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to perform that process or it significantly
contributes to the ability to continue producing outputs and is considered unique or scarce or cannot be replaced
without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability to continue producing outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as equity is not remeasured and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of
IFRS ¢ Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with the changes in fair value recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9. Other contingent consideration that is not within the scope of IFRS 9 is
measured at fair value at each reporting date with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost (being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any previous interest held over the net identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed). If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration
transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities
assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the
reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration
transferred. then the gain is recognised in profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Investment in subsidiaries (cont'd)

Business combinations (cont'd)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (CGU) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Financial instruments

Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) is initially measured at fair
value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to
its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost and fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) - equity investment.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group changes its business model
for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first
reporting period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:
*  itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

= iis contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at

FVTPL:

» it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

» it contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Financial instruments (cont'd)

Classification and subsequent measurement (cont'd}
Financial assets (cont'd)

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in other comprehensive income (QCI). This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis.

Financial assets - Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio
level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The
information considered includes:

< the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.

These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular

interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected

cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets:

= how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group’s management;

+  the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business
nwdel) and how twose risks are managed;

*  how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

= the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered
sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets - Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition.
‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal
amount outstanding during a particular pertod of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and
administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that
could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers:

»  contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

*  terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variablerate features;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Financial instruments (cont'd)
Classification and subsequent measurement {cont'd)

Financial assets-Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest {cont'd)
e prepayment and extension features; and
*  terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets {e.g. non-recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment
amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding, which
may include reasonable compensation for early termination of the contract, Additionally, for a financial asset acquired
at a discount or premium {o its contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment af an amount that
substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also
include reasonable compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the
prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets - Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Trade receivables, contraet assets and financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is
reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in

profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments at FYOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in
OCI and are never reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities - Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost. Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and

" rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains

substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised in its statement of financial position, but
retains either all or substantially afl of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred
assets are not derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Financial instruments (cont'd)

Derecognition (cont'd)

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.
The Group also derccognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified
liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at
fair value,

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position
when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value being their issue proceeds net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transac.ion costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months after end of reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract s, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets,
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Leases {cont'd)

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets arc also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section 2.13 Impairment of
non-financial assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts

. expected to be paid under resicual value guarantees, The lease payments also include the cxercise price of a purchase

option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses {unless they are incurred
to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. Afier the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities s increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used
to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are disclosed in note 6(b).

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment
(i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option}. It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that
are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONT'D)
Current and deferred income tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss cxcept to the extent that it

relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax arising from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met as per below:
(i) the Group has a legal right to offset; and
(i) the Group intends to settle on a net basis.

An entity will normally have a legally enforceable right to set off a current tax asset against a current tax Hability when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the taxation authority permits the entity to make
or receive a single net payment.

Corporate Social responsibility (CSR)

In line with the definition within the income Tax 1993, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is regarded as u tax and
is therefore subsumed with the income tax recognised in the profit or loss and the income tax Hability on the statement
of financial position.

The CSR charge for the current year is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the Mauritian tax authorities.
The CSR rate and laws used to compute the amount are those charged or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

COVID-19 Levy

A levy has been imposed by the Mauyritian govemment on companies that have benefited from the wage assistance
subsidy programme (GWAS) to assist companies to pay the salaries of their full-time or pari-time employees as
follows:

For the first year of tax assessment the levy is payable on the lower of:
1. the amount received under the Wage Assistance Scheme; and
2. 15% of the tax adjusted profit for the year before deducting any tax loss brought forward.

‘Whereas for the second applicable year of assessment, the amount received under the Wage Assistance Scheme is
more than the first payment of COVID-19 Levy or no payment has been made, the COVID-19 Levy is payable on the
lower of:

1. the amount received under the Wage Assistance Scheme less the COVID-19 Levy paid for the first year of
assessment; and

2. 15% of the tax adjusted profit for the year before deducting any tax loss brought forward.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Current and deferred income tax expense (cont'd)

COVID-19 Levy (cont'd)
The Group has accounted for the COVID-19 Levy under income tax expense and current tax liabilities,

Deferved tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is not recognised for:
«  temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

+  temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the extent that
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will
not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

*  taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that arc expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Coinpany expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate to income faxes levied by the same tax authorities on the same taxable entity, or on different
tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will
be realised simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.10 Share capital
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Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as deduction, net of tax, from proceeds.

Retirement benefit obligations

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity,
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

Payments to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service that
entitle them to the contributions.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan. Typically defined benefit plans define
an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors
such as age, years of service and compensation.

The liability recognised in the statements of financial positicn in respect of defined benefit pensicn plarn is the presens
value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined
benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions, the return on plan assets (excluding interest} and the effect of the
asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), is recognised immediately in other comprehensive income in the period in
which they occur. Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income shall not be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent period.

The Group determines the net interest expense/(income) on the net defined benefit liability/(asset) for the period by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the
net defined liability/(asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined lLiability/(asset) during the period as a
result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense/(income} is recognised in profit or loss. Service
costs comprising current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Unfimded pensioners
For penstoners (former employees) who are not covered under any pension plan, the net present value of pension
payable as per the terms of the contractual agreement is calculated by a qualified actuary and provided for.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Retirement benefit obligations (cont'd)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits
and when the Group recognises costs for a restructuring. If benefits are not expected to be setiled wholly within 12
months of the reporting date, then they are discounted.

Gratuity on retirement

The Company is required under the Employment Rights Act 2008 (the "the ERA") to make a statutory gratuity
payment to employees retiring after continuous employment with the Company for a period of 12 moths or more. The
employee need to have reached retirement age as prescribed by the ERA to be eligible for the gratuity payment.

The Company calculates its net obligations in respect of defined benefit pension plans arising from the ERA for
employees by estimating the amount of future benefit that its employees have earned in return for their service in the
current and prior periods, that benefit is discounted to determine the present value. The discount rate is the yield at the
end of the reporting period.

The net present value of gratuity on retirement payable under the ERA is calculated by a qualified actuary (AON
Hewitt) using the projected unit credit method on a yearly basis.

The company is eligible to deduct employer's share of contributions from the above defined contribution plans
maintained by the Company to the extent as prescribed by the ERA, which may or may not leave residual liability to
be provided for in the financial statements. The obligations arising under this item are not funded.

In accordance with the Employment Rights Act, the amounts deductible are:

*  half the lump sum payable from the defined contribution scheme, based on employer’s contribution;

»  five times the amount of any annual pension payable at the retirement age due from the defined contribuftion,
based on employer’s contribution;

»  any other gratuity granted at the retirement age; and

*  tentimes the amount of any annual pension granted at the retirement age.

State plan
Contributions to the National Pension Scheme are expensed to the profit or loss in the year in which they fall due.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are those expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting peried during which employee services are rendered, but do not include termination benefits. Examples
include wages, salaries, profit-sharing and bonuses and non-monetary benefits paid to current employees.

The undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in respect of service rendered by employees in an
accounting period is recognised in that period. The expected cost of short-term compensated absences is recognised as
the employees render service that increases their entitlement or, in the case of non accumulating absences, when the
absences occur, and includes any additional amounts an entity expects to pay as a result of unused entitlements af the
end of the period.
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(@)

®

(c)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Foreign currencies

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using Mauritian rupees, the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates ("functional currency"). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Mauritian Rupees which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented in profit or
loss.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate at the reporting date.

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction.

Non-mounetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreigu currency are translated using the exchange rates al the
date the fair value was determined.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)

that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

(i} assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the exchange rate at the
date of that statement of financial position;

(ii) income and expenses for each statement representing profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences from monetary items that form part of a net investments in subsidiary
companies are recognised in other comprehensive income and reclassified to profit and loss on disposal of the net
investment.

When a foreign operation is disposed of in its entirety or partially such that control, significant influence or joint
control is lost, the cumulative amount in the transiation reserve related to that foreign operation is reclassified to profit
or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. If the Group disposes of part of its interest in a subsidiary but retains
control, then the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to NCI.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated into euro at the exchange rates at the
reporting date.
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2.13

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-derivative financial assets

Financial instruments and contract assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs on financial assets measured at amortised cost,

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are

measured at 12-month ECLs:

- bank balances for which credit risk {i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial
instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Group’s historical experience and informed credit assessment, that includes forward-looking information.

.The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significuntly if it is more than 90 days past

due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or

- the financial asset is more than 360 days past due.
Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the
reporting date {or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

“The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset,
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.13 Impairment of non-financial assets (cont'd)
Non-derivative financial assets (cont'd)
Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-impaired. A
financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- abreach of contract such as a default or being meore than 90 days past due;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider otherwise;
- itis probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the
assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no reasonable expectations of
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. For individual customers, the Group has a policy of
writing off the gross carrying amount when the financial asset is 360 days past due based on historical experience of
recoveries of similar assets. For corporate customers, the Group individually makes an assessment with respect to the
timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Group expects no
significant recovery from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Non-financial assefs

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than investment
property, inventories and deferred tax assets) to defermine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. Goodwill arising from a
business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination,
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2.14

(@)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Impairment of non-financial assets (cont'd)

Non-financial assets (cont'd)

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value
in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU on a pro rata
basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Performance obligations and timing of revenue recognition
Revenue is derived from sale of services with revenue recognised at a point in time. This is generally when the services
are rendered to the customer.

The Group provides courier services, freight forwarding, packing of special sugars, port related and transport services,
shipping services and warehousing. Customers are normally given one month to settle their invoices.

Determining the transaction price
Revenue is derived from the fixed price for each contract and therefore the amount of revenue to be earned from each
contract is determined by reference to those fixed prices.

Allocating amounts to performance obligations

For most contracts, there is a fixed unit price for each service rendered, with reductions given for bulk orders placed at
a specific time. Therefore, there is no judgement involved in allocating the contract price to each service ordered in
such contracts (it is the total contract price divided by the type of services rendered).

For most contracts, there is a fixed unit price for each service rendered, with reductions given for bulk orders placed at
a specific time. Therefore, there is no judgement involved in allocating the contract price to each service ordered in
such contracts. Customers are given one month to settle their invoices.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.14 Revenue recognition (cont'd)

(@)

(b)

2.15

2.16

217

Revenue from contracts with customers {cont'd)

Practical Exemptions

The Group has taken advantage of the practical exemptions:

»  not to account for significant financing components where the time difference between receiving consideration
and transferring control of goods (or services) to its customer is one year or less; and

+  expense the incremental costs of obtaining a contract when the amortisation period of the asset otherwise
recognised would have been one year or less.

Other income

Other revenues eamed by the Group are recognised on the following bases:

»  Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the
effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

+  Other income is recognised as it accrues unless collectability is in doubt,

*»  Dividend income - when the sharecholder's right to receive payment is established.

Dividend

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group's financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are declared.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell if their carrying amount is recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through a continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only, when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available for immediate sale in
its present condition.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of
that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met, regardless of whether the
Group will retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Finance costs
The Group’s finance costs include interest expense. Interest expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument to the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the amortised cost
of the liability.
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2.18

2.19

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Wage subsidy

In response to the COVID-19 coronavirus pandemic, in March 2020 the Govemnment of Mauritius introduced a wage
subsidy program for companies to ensure that all employees are duly paid their salary.

Wage subsidy that compensates the Mauritian subsidiaries for expenses incurred are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the periods in which the expenses are recognised.

Fair value measurement

*Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market
to which the Group has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities.

When one is available, the Group measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market
for that instrument. A market is regarded as ‘active’ if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Group uses valuation techniques that maximise the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valnation technique incorporates
all of the factors that market participants would take into acconnt in pricing a transaction. The best evidence of the fair
value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price - i.e. the fair value of the
consideration given or received. If the Group determines that the fair value on initial recognition differs from the
transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or
liability nor based on a valuation technique for which any unobservable inputs are judged to be insignificant in relation
to the measurement, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference
between the fair value on initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognised in
profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly
supported by observable market data or the transaction is closed out.



VELOGIC HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

45

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2021

3.1

(a)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial Risk Factors

The Group's activities expose il Lo a variely of [inancial risk factors, including:
(a) market risk;

(b) credit risk;

(c) lquidity risk; and

(d) cash flow and fair value interest rate risk.

The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to

minimise potential adverse effect on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by treasury department under policies approved by the Board of Directors. Treasury
identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close cooperation with the operating units, The Board provides
principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk and non-derivative financial instruments and investment of excess liquidity.

A description of the significant risk factors is given below together with the risk management policies applicable.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - e.g. currency risk and price risk - will affect the Group’s
income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is fo manage

and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to Euro, Kenya Shilling and US Dollar. Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations.

Management has set up a policy to require the Group to manage its foreign exchange risk exposure with treasury.

The Group also manages the exposure to currency variations by matching receipts and disbursements.

The Group has investments in foreign operations, whose net assets are exposed to foreign currency translation risk,
Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Group foreign operations is managed primarily through
borrowings denominated in the relevant foreign currencies.
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3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
3.1 Financial Risk Factors (cont'd)
(a) Market risk (cont'd)
(i) Currency risk (cont'd)
Currency profile
The currency profile of the Group and the Company's financial assets and liabilities is summarised below:
2021 2020
Financial Financial Financial Financial
THE GROLIP assets liabilities assets liabilities
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Rupee 375,401 644,688 351,988 958,724
Euro 498,464 480,670 414,258 242,082
US Dollar 267,157 148,974 237,501 93,382
Great Britain (GB) Pound 24,459 980 12,005 20,705
Kenya Shilling 235,947 73,129 239,138 80,722
Others 124,710 130,483 23,410 79,182
1,526,138 1,478,924 1,338,300 1,474,797
THE COMPANY 2021 2020
Financial Financial Financial Financial
assets liabilities assets liabilities
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Rupee 58,184 95,925 60,535 88,423
Euro - 25,108 - 37,011
58,184 121,033 60,535 125434

Sensitivity analysis

At the end of reporting date, if the rupee had weakened/strengthened against the following currencies with all the
variables remaining constant, the impact on the pre-tax profit and total equity for the period would have been shown
in the table below, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of foreign currency denominated

financial assets and liabilities.

Group entities are taxed at a rate ranging from 15% to 28%.



YELOGIC HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

. 47
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONT'D)
3.1 Financial Risk Factors (cont'd)
{a) Market risk (cont'd)
(i} Currency risk (cont'd)
THE GROUP 2021 2020
% Impact on pre-tax profit % Impact on pre-tax profit
change and total equity change and total equity
Financial Financial Financial Financial
assets liabilities assets liabilities
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Euro 13% 24,923 24,034 11% 45,568 26,629
US Dollar 6% 2,672 1,490 12% 28,500 11,206
GB Pound 20% 3,180 127 9% 1,080 1,863
Kenya Shiiling 5% 4,719 1,463 8% 19,131 6,458
Others 6% 3,741 3,914 5% 4,171 3,959
39,235 31,028 98,450 50,115
THE COMPANY
Euro 13% - 1,255 11% - 4,071

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. Credit risk arises from financial assets at amortised cost, trade receivables and
cash and cash equivalents.

Credit risk is managed on a Group basis. For banks and financial institutions, only independently rated parties are

accepted. The main bank has been rated by the leading independent agency namely Moody's as bal.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of financial assets recognised at the reporting
date, as summarised below:

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2021 2020 2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Financial assets at amortised cost 143,981 107,589 52,099 54,745
Trade receivables 858,826 859,757 - -
Contract assets 46,441 38,600 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 473,681 329,639 6,085 5,790

1,522,929 1,335,585 58,184 60,535
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3.1

(b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

Financial Risk Factors (cont'd)

Credit risk (cont'd)

Financial assets at amortised cost includes loans advanced to related parties after a careful analysis of the financial
soundness of the counterparties. Obligations of the counterparties are monitored closely. As of date, there is no
indication that the subsidiaries will not be able to repay the loan on due date.

Risk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and
other factors. Individual risk limits are set out based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by

the Board. The compliance with credit limits by customers is regularly monitored by line management.

Sales to customers on credit are made after a careful analysis of the financial soundness of the counterparties.

Obligations of the counterparties are monitored closely.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime

expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.

To measrie the expacted cred’l losses, trade receivables lLisve becn grouped based on shared credit risk

characteristics and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based in the payment profiles of sales over a period of 3 years and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-locking information on macroeconomics factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables. The Group has identified the GDP to be the most relevant factor, and accordingly adjusts the historical
rates based on expected changes in these factors. The gross domestic product used for 2021 is (-15.8% to 6.6%) and
the forward-looking overlay for 2022 is (6.6% to 5.2%). This has been used to reflect difference between economic
conditions during the period over which the historical data has been collected, current conditions and the Groups
view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the receivables. The measurement of the expected credit
losses excludes trade receivables which are insured and/or are based on internal or external ratings.

On that basis, the loss allowance as at June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020 is disclosed in note 12(a).

The Group has adopted the general approach for measuring ECL for financial assets at amoitised cost.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
3.1 Financial Risk Factors (cont'd}
(b} Credit risk (cont'd)

Under the general approach, the Expected Credit Losses {(ECL) is measured as below:

ECL=PD=LGDXEAD

Where:

. ECL refers to the Expected Credit Losses;

. PD - This is the Probability of Default currently defined as the probability that the receivable will remain
outstanding for more than 90 days;

. LGD - Loss Given Default denotes the share of losses, that is, the actual receivable’s loss in the event of
customer default, or what is expected to be irrecoverable from among the assets in insolvency proceedings;
and

. EAD - Exposure at Default is the amount outstanding at the reporting date.

The directors have considered the probability of default over 12 months derived from public available credit rating

such as Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s. The expected loss given default has been derived using the Base] II

Guidelines for uncollaterised asset. The ECL model resulied in an immaterial impairment.

(¢) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its

financial liabilities that are settled by delivery of cash or another financial asset.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of

funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market position.

The Group aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.
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3.1

(d)

32

FINANCIAL RISK. MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
Financial Risk Factors (cont'd)
Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fiture cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, the Group's income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group's interest-rate risk
arises from borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

The Group has an interest rate policy which aims at minimising the annual interest cosis and reduce volatility, The

cost of debt is managed by effective negotiation directly with banks and other financial institutions.

Sensitivity analysis

THE GROUP

At the end of reporting date, if interest rates on borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/lower with all variables
held constant, pre-tax profit and total equity for the year would have been Rs 2.666 million (2020: Rs 3.690 million)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings.

THE COMPANY

At the end of reporting date, if interest rates on borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/lower with all variables
held constant, pre-tax profit and total equity for the year have been Rs 0.121 million lower/higher (2020: Rs 0.125
million), mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings.

Capital risk management

The Group's and the Company's objectives when managing capital are:
- to safeguard the Group's and the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to

provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
- to provide an adequate return to shareholders by providing products and services commensurately with the level

of risk.

The Group and the Company set the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Group and the Company manage the
capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to

shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistently with others in the industry, the Group and the Company monitor capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt adjusted capital. Net debt is calculated as total debt (as shown on the
statements of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity comprises all components of equity i.e.

share capital, other reserves, non-controlling interests and retained eamings.
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3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
3.2 Capital risk management {cont'd)
The debt-to-equity ratios at June 30, 2021 and at June 30, 2020 were as follows:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2021 2020 2021 2020
Rs"000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Lease liabilities (note 6(b)) 265,768 354,651 - -
Borrowings (note 19) 361,970 504,749 82,225 97,504
Total debts 627,738 859,400 82,225 97,504
Less: cash and cash equivalents (473,681) (329.,639) (6,085) {5,790)
Net debt 154,057 529,761 76,140 91,714
Total equity 1,810,758 1,661,584 984,030 1,034,571
Debt-to-equity ratio 2% 32% 8% 9%
The net debt to equity ratio changed from 32% at June 30, 2020 to 9% at June 30, 2021 for the Group and the net debt
1o equity ratic changed from %% @ June 30, 2020 to 8% at June 30, 2021 for the Company following increase i profit
for the year and reduction of total debts.
There were no changes in the Group's approach to capital risk management during the year.
3.3 Fair value estimation

‘When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market observable data as far as possible.
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly {i.e., derived from prices)
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Accounting classification and fair valies
A number of the Group's and the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures requires the measurement of fair

values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and liabilities, including their levels
in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not

measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.
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4.1

(@

®

(©)

(d)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,

including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

Estimated impairment of goodwill
The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy

stated in note 2.4(a). These calculation require the use of estimates as stated in note 7(e).

Pension benefits
The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis
using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost/(income) for pensions include the

discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of pension obligations.

The Group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that should be
used to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the pension
obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Group considers the interest rates of high-quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating the terms of the related pension obligation.

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based in part on current market conditions. Additional information

is disclosed in Note 20,

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment
The Group carries its land and buildings at revalued amounts with changes in fair value being recognised in other

comprehensive income. The Group engaged independent valuation specialists to determine fair value as at June 30,
2020. The key valuation technique assumptions used to determine the fair value of property, plant and equipment are
further explained in note 5.

L)

Limitation of sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis in respect of market risk in note 3{a) demonstrate the effect of a change in a key assumption

while other assumptions remain unchanged. In reality, there is a correlation between the assumptions and other
factors. It should be noted that these sensitivities are non-linear and larger or smaller impacts should be interpolated or

extrapolated from these results.
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4.1

(@

(e

M

(&

CRITICAL: ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONT'D)
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (cont'd)

Limitation of sensitivity analysis (cont'd)
The sensitivity analysis do not take into consideration that the Group's assets and liabilities are actively managed.

Other limitations include the use of hypothetical market movements to demonstrate potential risk that only represent

the Group's views of possible near-term market changes that cannot be predicted with any certainty.

Impairment of financial assets
The loss allowance for financial assets as discussed in note 3({b) are based on assumptions about risk of default and

expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the itmpairment
calculation, based on the Group's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the

end of each reporting period.

The forward looking overlay used was GDP which has been significantly impacted by COVID-19. Elements of the
ECL models that are considered as accounting judgements and estimates include mainly the development of ECL
models including the various formulas and the choice of input which normally include determination of associations
between macro economics scenarios and economic inputs such as gross domestic products rate and collateral values
and probability of default (PPD), Exposure At Default (EAD).

Asset lives and residual values

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over its useful life taking into account residual values, where
appropriate (note 2.2). The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vary depending
on a number of factors. In reassessing asset lives, factors such as technological innovation, product life cycles and
maintenance programmes are taken into account. Residual value assessments consider issues such as future market
conditions, the remaining life of the asset and projected disposal values. Consideration is also given to the extent of
current profits and losses on the disposal of similar assets.

The directors therefore make estimates based on historical experience and use best judgement to assess the useful lives

of assets and to forecast the expected residual values of the assets at the end of their expected usefil lives.

Impairment of non-financial assets
Goodwill is considered for impairment at least annually (note 7). Property, plant and equipment (note 5) and

intangible assets (note 7) are considered for impairment if there is a reason to believe that impairment may be
necessary. Factors taken into consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic viability of the asset

itself and where it is a component of a larger economic unit, the viability of that unit itself,

Tuture cash flows expected to be generated by the assets or cash-generating units are projected, taking into account
market conditions and the expected useful lives of the assets. The present value of these cash flows, determined using
an appropriate discount rate, is compared to the current net asset value and, if lower, the assets are impaired to the
present value. The impairment loss is first allocated to goodwill and then to the other assets of a cash-generating unit.
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4.1

(2)

(h)

@

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONT'D)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions {cent'd)

TImpairment of non-financial assets {cont'd)

Cash flows which are utilised in these assessments are extracted from formal five-year business plans which are
updated annually. The Group utilises the valuation model to determine asset and cash-generating unit values

supplemented, where appropriate, by discounted cash flow and other valuation techniques.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate
The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing

rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities (note 6). The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to
borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group ‘would have to pay’,
which requires estimation when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into
financing transactions) or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example,
when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the
subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be

available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable

profits, together with future tax planning strategies.

The Group has Rs 86,217 million (2020: Rs 103.877 million) of tax losses carried forward. These losses relate to
subsidiaries that have a history of losses, do not expire, and may not be used to offset taxable income elsewhere in the
Group. The subsidiaries neither have any taxable temporary difference nor any tax planning opportunities available
that could partly support the recognition of these losses as deferred tax assets. On this basis, the Group has determined

that it cannot recognise deferred tax assets on the tax losses carried forward.

If the Group was able to recognise all unrecognised deferred tax assets, profit and equity would have increased by Rs
14.657 million (2020: Rs 17,659 million). Further details on taxes are disclosed in Note 10.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2021

(b)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D)

The Group's land and buildings were last revalued at June 30, 2020 by independent valuers. The revaluation net of

applicable deferred income taxes was credited to revaluation surplus in shareholders' equity (note 18).

Details of the Group's land and building measured at revalued amounts and information about the fair value hierarchy
are as follows:

Level 2 Level 3 Total
2021 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Freehold land and yard 164,718 - 164,718
Freehold buildings - 50,298 50,298
Buildings and yard on leasehold land - 415,742 415,742
164,718 466,040 630,758
2020
Freehold land and yard 163,091 - 163,091
Freehold buildings - 48,870 48,870
Buildings and yard on leasehold land - 426,186 426,186
163,091 475,056 638,147

There were no transfers between level 2 and 3 during the year.

The fair value of the freehold land was derived using the sales comparison approach. Sales prices of comparable land
in close proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as property size. The most significant input into
this valuation approach is price per square metre,

The fair value of the frechold buildings, buildings and yard on leasehold land were determined using the cost
approach that reflects the cost to a market participant to construct assets of comparable utility and age, adjusted for
obsolescence. The most significant input into this valuation approach is cost per square metre.

Significant unobservable valuation input: 2021 & 2020
Level 2 Level 3 Level 3
Frechold Buildings and
land Freehold yard on
and yard buildings leasehold land
Rs. Rs. Rs.
3,650 - 13,000 - 24,000 -
Price/cost per square metre 6,500 16,500 47,500
Level 2 Level 3 Level 3
Freehold Buildings and
land Freehold yard on
and yard buildings leasehold land
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000

Effect of 10% increase/{decrease) in
estimated price per square metre in isolation 16,309 4,658 42,617
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D)
The reconciliation of buildings measured at revalued amounts using significant unobservable inputs are as follows:
Building and
Freehold yard on
buildings leasehold land Total
2021 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
At July 1,2020 48,870 426,186 475,056
Additions - 2,888 2,888
Depreciation charged to profit or loss {335) (13,332) (13,667)
Exchange differences charged through OCI 1,763 - 1,763
At June 30,2021 50,298 415,742 466,040
Building and
Freehold yard on
buildings leasehold land Total
2020 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
At July 1, 2019 29,235 399,501 428,736
Additions 435 3,520 3,955
Revaluation surplus credited through OCI 19,413 35,492 54,905
Depreciation charged to profit or lose (1,418) (10,938) (12,336)
Transfer (344) (1,391) (1,735)
Exchange differences credited through OCI 1,549 2 1,551
At June 30, 2020 48,870 426,186 475,056
{c}  Ifthe land and buildings were stated on the historical cost basis, the amounts would be as follows:
THE GROUP
2021 2020
Rs"000 Rs'000
Cost 179,718 176,830
Accumulated depreciation (51,849) {48,255)
Net book value 127,869 128,575
(d) Bank borrowings are secured by floating charges on the assets of the Group including property, plant and equipment
for the value of Rs 241.401 million (2020: Rs 343.145 million).
(e} Change in estimaies

In 2020, the Group conducted an operational efficiency review of its plant and equipment, which resulted in changes
in their expected usage. The lorries and forklift which management had previousty intended to use for seven years, is
now expected to remain in production for 12 years from the date of purchase. As a result, the expected usetul life of
the equipment increased and its estimated residual value decreased. The effect of these changes on actual and
expected depreciation expense was as follows:

2020 2021 2022 2023 Later

Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Increase in depreciation expense 1,147 1,130 916 561 1,760
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6. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABH.ITIES
THE GROUP

(2) Right-of-use assets Leasehold Plant & Motor

land Buildings equipment vehicles Total

(i 2021 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
COST
At July 1, 2020 87,844 213,154 124,863 60,068 485,929
Additions - 57,791 - 3,199 60,990
Disposal - - - {2,126) {2,126)
Effect of modification
{0 lease terms (5,478) {41,718) (13,623) - {60,819)
Terminated leases - {56,421) (6,263) - (62,684)
Transfer from property, plant
and equipment (note 5) - - - 3,496 3,496
Transfer to property, plant
and equipment (note 5) - - {16,436) (6,677) (23,113)
Exchange difference - 5,489 - 1,148 6,037
At June 30, 2021 i 82,366 178,297 88,541 59,108 48,310
DEPRECIATION
At July 1,2020 3,209 54,268 47,264 27,878 132,619
Charge for the year 3,522 58,012 21,214 12,752 95,500
Disposal adjustment - - - {1,203) {1,203)
Terminated leases - (56,421) (6.263) - (62,684)
Transfer from property, plant
and equipment (note 5) - - - 1,211 1,211
Transfer to property, plant
and equipment (note 5) - - (8,379) (6,305) (14,684)
Exchange difference - 1,518 - 588 2,106
At June 30, 2021 6,731 57,377 53,836 34,921 152,865
NET BOOK VALUES .
At June 30, 2021 75,635 120,918 34,765 24,187 255,445
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6. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES (CONT'D)
{a)  Right-of-use assets (cont'd)
G 2020 Leasehold Plant & Motor
land Buildings equipment vehicles Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
COST
At July 1, 2019 87,844 189,703 73,173 5,818 356,538
Transfer from property,
plant and equipment (note 5) - - 53,825 40,964 94,789
Additions - 19,190 871 12,4935 32,556
Disposal - - (3,006) - (3,006)
Exchange difference - 4,261 - 791 5,052
At June 30, 2020 87,844 213,154 124,863 60,068 485,929
DEPRECIATION
Transfer from property,
plant and equipment (note 5) - - 25,114 14,961 40,075
Charge for the year 3,209 53,812 25,134 12,711 94,866
Disposal adjustment - - (3,006) - (3,006}
Exchange difference - 456 22 206 684
At June 30, 2020 3,209 54,268 47,264 27,878 132,619
NET BOOK VALUES
At June 30, 2020 84,635 158,886 77,599 32,190 353,310
(b) Lease liabilities Leaschold Plant & Motor
land Buildings equipment vehicles Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
@ 2021
THE GROUP
At Tuly 1, 2020 88,387 165312 65,062 35,890 354,651
Additions - 57,791 - 6,695 64,486
Effect of modification
to lease terms (5,585) (43,562) {14,324) - (63,471)
Interest expense 4,898 8,578 2,805 1472 17,853
Foreign exchange movements - 5,034 - 761 5,795
1 ease payments (4,801) (64,305) (25,583) (18,857 (113,546)
At June 30, 2021 82,899 128,848 28,069 25,961 265,768
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
6. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES (CONT'D)
(b)  Lease liabilities (cont"d)
(B 2021 {cont'd) Teasehold Plant & Motor
land Buildings equipment vehicles Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Analysed as follows:
Non-current:
1-2 years - 29,630 8,336 7,541 45,507
2-5 years - 53,785 6,875 8,395 69,055
More than 5 years 82,899 10,307 - - 93,206
82,899 93,722 15,211 15,936 207,768
Current:
2 months or less - 6,175 2,462 1,945 10,582
2-12 months - 28,951 10,387 8,080 47,418
- 35,126 12,849 16,025 58,000
82,899 128,848 28,060 25,961 265,768
(i) 2020 Leasehold Plant & Motor
land Buildings eyuipmant vehicles Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs000 Rs'000
At July 1, 2019 87,844 189,703 01,492 35,697 404,736
Additions - 19,190 871 13,880 33,941
Interest expense 4,789 9,215 4,308 1,809 20,121
Foreign exchange movements - 4,275 - 791 5,066
Lease payments (4,246) (57,071) (31,609 (16,287) (109,213)
At June 30, 2020 88,387 163,312 65,062 35,800 354,651
Non-current:
1-2 years 2,851 34,378 17,304 9,658 64,191
2-5 years 10,017 66,253 24,714 12,582 113,566
More than 5 years 72,882 16,666 - - 89,548
85,750 117,297 42,018 22,240 267,305
Current:
2 months or less 429 8,671 3,889 2,402 15,391
2.12 moenths 2,208 39,344 19,155 11,248 71,955
2,637 48,015 23,044 13,650 87,346
88,387 165,312 65,062 35,890 354,651
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(©

(d)

(e)

&)

@

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES (CONT'D)
Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)

Freeport Operations (Mauritius) Limited, a subsidiary, leases a plot of land from the Mauritius Ports Authority. The
lease agreement expires on March 30, 2056. The lease contract provide for payments to increase every ten years by
50%.

Another subsidiary, Associated Container Services Limited, leases a plot of land in Rodrigues from the Mauritius
Ports Authority which expires on April 2, 2030.

The Group leases various buildings for office space. The Group also leases certain items of plant & equipment and
motor vehicles. The leases comprise only fixed paymenls over the lease terms. There is no impact on the carrying
amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets on the reporting date as the Group is not subject to lease payments
that are variable. There are nio extension and termination options included in leases across the Group. The Group did

not provide residual value guarantees in relation to leases.

Other information THE GROUP
2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000

Lease payments 95,693 85,002
Interest expense {included in finance cost) (note 27) 17,853 20,121

113,546 109,213
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 9,468 11,524
Total cash outflows for leases 123,014 120,737

Assets under finance leases are now presented separately within right-of-use assets in accordance with IFRS 16
presentation requirements. This item was presented previously in property, plant and equipment (note 5).

Lease liabilities are now presented separately on the Statement of Financial Position in accordance with IFRS 16
presentation requirements. This item was presented previously in borrowings (note 19).

The land and buildings of one of its subsidiaries (Freeport Operations Ltd) were revalued at June 30, 2021 by
independent valners and leasehold rights valued at Rs 518.8 million were not included in the statement of financial
position. Had the leasehold rights been included, the net assets value and total equity would have increased by Rs
518.8 million.
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7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS Customer
related Concession Computer
intangibles rights Goodwill software Total
THE GROUP Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
@ 2021
COST
At July 1, 2020 41,402 180,000 458,794 82,986 763,182
Addition - - - 1,347 1,347
Disposal - - - (3,917) (3,917)
Exchange differences - - - 1,241 1,241
At June 30, 2021 41,402 180,000 458,794 81,657 761,853
AMORTISATION
At July 1, 2020 26,687 73,642 - 67,712 168,041
Charge for the year 5,327 3,000 - 1,604 9,931
Disposal adjustment - - - (3.917) (3,917
Exchange differences - - - 1,081 1,081
At June 30, 2021 32,014 76,642 - 66,480 175,136
NET BOOX VALUE
At June 30, 2021 9,388 103,358 458,794 15,177 586,717
(b) 2020 Customer
related Concession Computer
intangibles rights Goodwill software Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
COST
AtJuly 1, 2019 41,402 180,000 457,192 72,547 751,141
Addition through
Business combination (note 32) - - 1,602 - 1,602
Addition - - - 13,608 13,608
Transfer from property, plant
and equipment (note 5) - - - 452 452
Assets scrapped - - - (5,014) (5,014)
Exchange differences - - - 1,393 1,393
At June 30, 2020 41,402 180,000 458,794 82,986 763,182
AMORTISATION
At July 1, 2019 21,360 70,642 - 67,219 159,221
Charge for the year 5,327 3,000 - 1,856 10,183
Assets scrapped - - - (2,466) (2,466)
Exchange differences - - - 1,103 1,103
At June 30, 2020 26,687 73,642 - 67,712 168,041
NET BOOK VALUE
At June 30, 2020 14,715 106,358 458,794 15,274 595,141




VELOGIC HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

69
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL SFTATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT'D)
. (¢)  The carrying amount at June 30, 2021 does not include internally generated goodwill (2020: Nil).
(d)  The carrying amount of goodwill are allocaled to the following CGUs:
Rs'000
Velogic Ltd 202,000
General Cargo Services Ltd 72,900
Others (immaterial in relation to the total goodwill) 183,894
458,794
(e} Impairment test for goodwill

Impairment test for goodwill is allocated to the Company's cash-generating units (CGVS) identified according to the

country of operation and business segment,

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill and determined that

there is no impairment of goodwill.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the Group's CGUs (subsidiaries). The
recoverable amounts for the cash generating units were based on their value in use, determined by discounting the
fuiare cash flows to be generated from the continuing use of the casn gencrating units. The cerrying amounts of the
cash generating units were determined to be lower than their recoverable amounts and no impairment has been
booked during the period under review. The key assumption in the estimation of value in use and recoverable
amounts are as follows:

2021 2020

Yo %
Discount rate 10.5 11.5
Budgeted EBIDTA growth rate (average for the next 3 years) 17.4 26.7

The discount rate was a post-tax measure estimation based on the rate of 10-year government bonds issue by the
Government in the relevant market and in the same currency as the cash flows, adjusted for a risk premium to reflect

both the risk of investing in equities generally and the systematic task of the specific Cash Generating Unit.

Forecasted EBIDTA has been based on the expectation of future outcomes adjusted or revenue growth and cost

containment measures

‘With regard to the assessment of value-in-use, there are no significant changes to the sensitivity information disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021, Consequently, any adverse change in a key

assumption could result in an impact.
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(e}

(a)

(b)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT'D)

Impairment test for goodwill (cont'd)
The key assumptions for the recoverable amount are discussed below:

. The discount rate has been adjusted to reflect the current market assessment of the risks specific to the Group
and was estimated based on the weighted average cost of capital for the Group. This rate was further adjusted
to reflect the market assessment of risks specific to the Group for which future estimates of cash flows have not
been adjusted. Further changes to the discount rate may be necessary in the future to reflect changing risks for
the industry and changes to the weighted average cost of capital.

. Growth rate assumptions - Rates are based on the current economic outlook. However, given the economic

uncertainty, reductions in growth estimates may be necessary in the future.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES THE COMPANY
2021 2020
COST Rs'000 Rs'000
At July 1, 1,099,211 857,857
Additional investment in subsidiaries 50 241,354
< Amalgamation adjustiment (note 8(b)} (58,047) -
At June 30, 1,041,214 1,099,211

On April 9, 2021, three subsidiaries of Velogic Holding Company Limited amalgamated with Velogic Limited,
another subsidiary of the Company. The camrying amount of the investment in the subsidiaries have been accounted as

amalgamation reserve (note 18).

2021
Rs'000
F.O.M. Warehouses Ltd 50
Trans World International Ltd 40,193
Velogic Depot & Warehouses Ltd 17,804

58,047
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
9.  FINANCIAL ASSEST AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(a) Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income THE GROUP
2021 2020
Level 3 Rs'000 Rs'000
At July 1, 2,715 1,544
Increase in fair value credited to other comprehensive income - 1,518
Exchange differences 494 (347)
At June 30, 3,209 2,715
{b) Fair value throngh other comprehensive income financial assets include the following:
THE GROUP
2021 2020
Unguoted: Rs'000 Rs'000
Mexa (Mtius) Investment Ltd 723 723
Les Lycees Associes Lice 706 706
Prokid 1,139 1,139
Others 641 147
3,209 2,715

(c) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income include the Group’s equity investments
not held for trading. The Group has made an irrevocable election to classify the equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income rather than through profit or loss because this is considered to be more

appropriate for these investments.

(dy The table below sets out information about significant unobservable inputs used in measuring financial instruments

categorised as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

Sensitivity to
changes in
significant

Valuation technique Unobservable unobservable
Name of investee 2021 2020 inputs Range inputs
Mexa (Mtius) Investment Ltd NAV NAV N/A N/A N/A
Les Lycees Associes Ltee NAV NAV N/A N/A N/A
Prokid NAV NAV N/A N/A N/A

NAV - Net assets value, N/A - Not applicable

(e) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are denominated in Mauritian rupees.
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10.

®

®

(©)

(®

DEFERRED INCOME TAX
Deferred income taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method at 17% (2020: 17%).

There is a legally enforceable right (o olfset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and deferred income tax

assets and liabilities when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority on the same entity.

The following amounts are shown in the statements of financial position: THE GROUP
2021 2020
Rs'000 IRs'000
Deferred tax assets 21,998 28,176
Deferred tax liabilities {86,380} 92,107)
{64,882) (63,931)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax losses of Rs 86,217 million (2020: Rs 103.877 million)
available for offset against future taxable profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of such losses

due to unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses expire on a rolling basis over 5 years.

The movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows: THE GROUP
2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs0G0

AtTuly 1, (63,931) (69,246)
Credited to profit or loss (note 16(b)) 4,466 12918
Charged to other comprehensive income (5,073) (8,211)
On acquisition of subsidiary (note 32) - (8)
Exchange differences (344) 616
At June 30, (64,882) (63,931)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of

balances within the same fiscal authority on the same entity, is as follows:

Deferred tax assets THE GROUP
Retirement Right- ECL on
benefit of-use financial
obligations assets Inventories assets Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
At July 1, 2019 9,022 - - 3,511 12,533
Credited to profit or loss 525 5,926 593 5,558 12,602
Credited to other
comprehensive income 2,913 - - - 2913
Exchange differences - - - 128 128

At June 30, 2020 12,460 5,926 593 9,197 28,176
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16. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONT'D)
(i) Deferred tax assets (cont'd) THE GROUP
Retirement Right- ECL on
benefit of-usc financial
obligations assets Inventories assets Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
At June 30, 2020 12,460 5,926 593 9,197 28,176
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss 532 (4,002) 381 1,959 (1,130}
Charged to other
comprehensive income (5,073) - - - (5,073)
Exchange differences - 85 - (60) 25
At June 30, 2021 7,919 2,009 974 11,096 21,998
(ii) Deferred tax liabilities THE GROUP
Accelerated  Revaluation Customer
tax of related Concession
depreciation assets goodwill rights Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
At July 1, 2019 (19,274) (38,794) (5,120) (18,591) (81,779)
{Charged)/(credited) to profit :
or loss (1,357 {(257) 1,420 510 316
Credited to other
comprehensive income - (11,124) - - (11,124)
On acquisition of subsidiary (8) - - - &)
Exchange differences 488 - - - 488
At June 30, 2020 (20,151) (50,175) (3,700) (18,081) (92,107)
Credited to profit or loss 3,667 - 1,419 510 5,596
Exchange differences {369) - - - (369)
At June 30, 2021 (16,853) (50,175} (2,281) (17,571) (86,880)
11. INVENTORIES THE GROUP
2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000
(a) Raw material 9,027 8,576
Spare parts and consumables 10,695 14,747
Containers 5,529 11,527
25,251 34,850
(b) All inventories are stated at cost. There was no inventory write down in the year ended June 30, 2021 (2020; Nil).
(c) The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost of sales amounted to Rs 151.878 million (2020: Rs
116.291 million) for the Group.
(d) The bank borrowings are secured by floating charges on the assets of the Group including inventory (note 19).



VELOGIC HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

79
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
12, TRADE RECEIVABLES THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2021 2020 2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000

Trade receivables 983,543 970,720 - -

Expected credit loss allowance {124,717) (110,963) - -

Trade receivables - net 858,826 859,757 - -
(a) Impairment of trade receivables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses (ECL) which uses a lifetime

expected foss allowance for all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics

and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based in the payment profiles of sales over a period of 3 years before June 30, 2020 and
June 30, 2019 respectively and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical
loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on macroeconomics factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The Group has identified the GDP of each country in which it sells its
services, to be the most relevant factor, and accordingly adjusts the historical rates based on expected changes in these
factors. The measurement of the expected credit losses excludes trade receivables which are insured and/or are based

on internal or exiernal ratings.

The carrying value of trade and other receivables have been analysed as follows:

THE GROUP
2021 Estimated
total gross Less

Number of days carrying value of trade receivables ECL carrying ECL Trade
have been past due Rate amount Allowance net of ECL

(%) Rs'000 Rs'000 " Rs'000
Not yet been past due 3.32% 569,573 (18,908} 550,665
Less than 30 days 5.22% 135,445 (7,075) 128,370
Between 30 to 60 days 8.01% 83,654 (6,702) 76,952
Between 60 to 90 days 7.21% 61,425 (4,430) 56,995
Between 90 to 180 days 16.84% 35,139 (5,917) 29,222
Between 180 to 360 days : 26.41% 13,512 {3,568) 9,944
More than 360 day 92.12% 84,795 (78,117 6,678

983,543 (124,717) 858,826
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12. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONT'D)
(8) Impairment of trade receivables (cont'd)
THE GROUP
2020 Estimated
total gross Less Trade
Number of days carrying value of trade receivables ECL carrying ECL receivables
have been past due Rate amount Allowance net of ECL
(%) Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Not yet been past due 0.88% 628.434 (5,541) 622,893
Less than 30 days 4.09% 89,530 (3,664) 85,866
Between 30 to 60 days 5.23% 66,449 (3,475) 62,974
Between 60 to 90 days 12.28% 44,497 (5,465) 39,032
Between 90 to 180 days 25 16% 47,694 (12,000} 35,604
Between 180 to 360 days 53.92% 28,852 {15,557) 13,295
More than 360 day 100.00% 65,264 {65,261) 3
970,720 (110,963) 859,757
The closing loss allowances for trade receivables reconcile to the opening loss allowances as follows:
THE GROUP
2021 2020
Rs'600 Rs'000
AtJuly 1, 1i0,963 83,644
Loss allowance recognised in profit or loss during the year 9,800 27,907
Receivable written off during the year as uncollectible (5,939) (7,987)
Exchange differences 9,393 7,399
At June 30, 124,717 110,963
The gross carrying amount in the balances of trade receivables over 360 days increased by Rs 19.531 million at June
30, 2021 and this resulted in an increase of Rs 13.754 million in the ELC allowance recognised at June 30, 2021.
Additional disclosures about credit risk of trade receivables has been given in note 3.1(b).
{b) The carrying amounts of trade receivables are denominated in the following currencies:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2021 2020 2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Rupee 136,383 192,324 - -
Euro 283,757 249 255 - -
Great Britain Pound 23,343 11,661 - -
US Dollar 159,234 116,312 - -
Kenya Shilling 167,801 220,035 - -
Others 88,308 70,170 - -
858,826 859,757 - -
(c) The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivable mentioned

above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.
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13. CONTRACT ASSETS THE GROUP
2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000
At July 1, 38,600 43,226
Transfers in the period from contract assets to trade receivables (38,600) (43,226)
Excess of revenue recognised over cash (or rights to cash)
being recognised during the period 46,441 38,600
At June 30, 46,441 38,600
(a) Contract assets relate to revenue earned from freight forwarding services which have not yet been invoiced. As such,
the balances of this account vary and depend on the number of ongoing services at the end of the year.
(b) The Group did not recognised any expected credit losses at June 30, 2021 (2020: Nil).
(c) Contract assets are now presented separately on the Statement of Financial Position in accordance with TFRS 15
presentation requirements. This item was presented previously in financial assets at amortised cost (note 14).
14. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2021 2020 2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs{(I00
Group (note 33)
Short term loans (interest free) - - 26,880 28,866
Short term loans (interest rate: 4.5% p.a) - - 21,318 23,100
Other receivables 1,807 2,098 3,901 2,760
1,807 2,008 52,099 54,726
External parties
Other receivables o 142,174 105,491 - 19
143,981 107,589 52,099 54,745
{a) Other receivables
These amounts generally arise from transactions outside the usual operating activities of the Group. It includes inter
alia disbursements made on behalf of customers, loan to employees, deposits with suppliers and loans to corporate
entities. Collateral is not normally obtained.
(b) Fair values of financial assets at amortised cost
Due to the shori-term nature of the current receivables, their carrying amount is considered to the same as their fair
value.
(c) Impairment and risk exposure

®

Financial assets at amortised cost did not include any loss allowance at June 30, 2021 (2020: nil).
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14. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST (CONT'D)
(d) The carrying amounts of the financial assets at amorlised cost are denominated in the following currencies:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2021 2020 2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Rupee 31,263 50,458 52,099 54,745
Euro 74,033 17,174 - -
US Dollar 11,484 7,338 - -
Kenya Shilling 11,860 19,103 - -
Others 15,341 13,516 - -
143,981 107,589 52,099 54,745
15. OTHER ASSETS THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2021 2020 2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs"000 Rs000
Prepayments (note 15(a)) 84,942 37,511 127 522
Dividend receivable (note 15(b)) - - 24,845 14,770
84,942 37,511 24,972 15,262
(a) Prepayments consists of expenses prepaid for inter alia road taxes, software licences, insurances, bank guarantees,
subscriptions fees, rentals and other advance payments.
(b} Dividend receivable was recorded in financial assets at amortised cost (note 14) in 2020 and has been reclassified to
other assets in 2021.
16. TAXATION THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2021 2020 2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs000
(a) Statements of financial position
At Juiy 1, 2,834 4,211 (33) (127)
Current tax on the adjusted results
for the year at 15%-28% (2020: 15%-28%) (47,144) (34,355) 274) (30}
Qver provision in previous period 659 345 - 69
Corporate social responsibility (3,895) (1,314) (33) €)]
COVID-19 levy (9,909) (12,212) - -
Withholding tax (6,338) (3,262 - -
Exchange differences 886 (316} - -
On acquisition of subsidiary - 35 - -
Tax refunded (3,728) - - -
Tax paid 60,673 50,202 33 58
At June 30, (5,962) 2,834 (307) (33)
Disclosed as:
Current tax assets 24,350 23,184 - -
Current tax liabilities (30,312) (20,350) (307) (33)

(5,962) 2,834 (307 (33)
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16. TAXATION (CONT'D)
(b) Statements of profit or loss THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2021 2020 2021 2020
Current tax on the adjusted results Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs060
for the year at 15%-28% (2020: 15%-28%) 47,144 34,355 274 30
Corporate social responsibility 3,895 1,814 33 3
COVID-19 levy 9,909 12,212 - -
Withholding tax 6,338 3,262 - -
Over provision in previous years 659 (345) - (69}
66,627 51,298 307 (36)
Deferred tax credit (note 10(b)) (4,466) (12,918) - -
Tax charge/(credit) 62,161 38,380 307 (36)
() The tax on the Group's and the Company's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the basis tax rate of the Company as follows:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2021 2020 2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Profit before taxation 213,213 142,870 48,813 37,644
Tax calculated at 15%-28% (2020: 15%-28%) 39,102 30,735 1322 5,647
Income not subject to tax (note (1)) (8,688) {42,313) (9,544) (6,029)
Expenses not deductible for tax
purposes (note (ii)) 15,757 26,163 2,496 412
Tax losses for which no deferred income
tax was recognised 6,460 13,912 - -
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses ’ - (3,103) (2,254) - -
Over provision in previous period (659) (345) - (69)
Corporate social responsibility 3,895 1,814 33 3
COVID-19 levy 9,969 12,212 - -
Withholding tax 6,338 3,262 - -
Foreign tax credit (6.830) (4,806) - -
Tax charge/(credit) £2,161 38,380 307 (36)
Effective tax rate 29% 27% 1% 0%
(i) Income not subject to tax includes annual allowances, balancing allowance, foreign exchange gain on bank balance and
lease rental payments.
(i) Expenses not deductible for tax purposes include depreciation and amortisation charge, employee benefit expense,

interest on leases, bad debts written off and provision for impairment losses.
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17. SHARE CAPITAL 2021 2020 2021 2020
Number of Number of
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY shares shares Amount Amount
Rs'000 Rs'000
Authorised, issued and fully paid - No Par
Value Shares
At July 1, 2019, June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2021 93,515,565 93,515,565 1,019,204 1,019,294
Fully paid ordinary shares carry one vote per share and carry a right to dividends.
18. OTHER RESERVES
Attributable to the equity holders of the parent
{a) THE GROUP Financial
i 2021 assets at
FVOCI Revaluation Translation Actuarial
reserve surplus reserves gains Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
At July 1, 2020 (8,458) 292,004 (49,334) (8,587) 225715
Other comprehensive income
for the year - - 1,075 33,214 34,289
At June 30, 2021 (8,458) 292,094 (48,259) 24,627 260,604
Atiributable to the equity holders of the parent
Financial
(i) 2020 assets at
FVOCl Revaluation Translation Actuarial
reserve surplus Teserves gains Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
At July 1, 2019 (9,959) 223,108 (43,150} 8,885 178,884
Other comprehensive income
for the year 1,495 67,673 (6,184) (17.427) 45,557
Change in ownership interest
in subsidiary 6 1,313 - (45) 1,274
At June 30, 2020 {8,458) 292,094 (49,334) {8,587) 225,715
(b) THE COMPANY Amalgamation
reserve
Rs'000
At July 1, 2020 -
Amalgamation during the year (note 8(b)) (58,047)
At June 30, 2021 (58,047)

Financial assets at FYQCI reserve

Gains/losses arising on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Revaluation surplus
The revaluation surplus arises on the revaluation of land and building,
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18.

19.

(a)

OTHER RESERVES (CONT'D)

Translation reserves

The translation reserve comprise all foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations, as well as from the translation of liabilities that hedge the Company’s net investment in a foreign
operations.

Actuarial gains
The actuarial gains reserve represents the cumulative remeasurement of defined benefit obligation recognised.

Amalgamation reserve

On Apnl 9, 2021, F.O.M. Warchouses Ltd, Trans World International Lid and Velogic Depot & Warchouses Lid,
wholly owned subsidiaries of Velogic Holding Company Limited amalgamated with Velogic Limited, another wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company. The carrying amount of the investment in the subsidiaries have been accounted as

amalgamation reserve.
BORROWINGS THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2021 2020 2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Non-current
Bank loans 85,786 92,804 13,792 -
Loan from related parties (note 33) - 104,350 27117 -
Other loans 4,902 4,091 - -
90,688 201,245 40,909 -
Current
Bank overdrafts 40,597 91,635 - 12,026
Bank loans 75,292 99,133 11,316 24,985
Other loans 43,655 66,707 - -
Loan from related parties {note 33) 111,738 46,029 30,000 60,403
271,282 303,504 41,316 97,504
Total borrowings 361,970 504,749 82,225 97,504

The borrowings include secured liabilities (bank loans and borrowings with other financial institutions amounting to
Rs 201.675 million (2020: Rs 323.830 million) for the Group and Rs 25,108 million for the Company (2020: Rs
37.011 million}. The bank borrowings are secured by floating charges on the assets of the Group including property,
plant and equipment, investments and inventories (note 5 and 11) .

Other loans comprise mainly of loans from minority shareholders of subsidiaries. The loans are unsecured, carries
interest at 8.00% (2020: 7.50% and 8.00%) p.a and are repayable within 12 months,
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19. BORROWINGS (CONT'D)

(b) The exposure of the Group and the Company's borrowings to interest-rate changes and the contractual repricing dates
are as follows:

2 months 2-12 1-5 Over
THE GROUP or less months years 5 years Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
At June 30,2021
Total borrowings 48,015 223,267 88,605 2,083 361,970
At June 30, 2020
Total borrowings 124,639 178,865 198,479 2,766 504,749
THE COMPANY 2 months 2-12 1-5 Over
or less months years 5 years Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
At June 30, 2021
Total borrowings 37,149 4,167 38,826 2,083 82,225
At June 30, 2020
Total borrowings 97,504 - - - 97,504

{c) The maturity of borrowings is as follows:

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2021 2020 2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Non-current:
1-2 years 48,060 77,436 31,284 -
2-5 years 40,539 121,043 7,542 -
More than five years 2,083 2,766 2,083 -
90,688 201,245 40,909 -
Current:
2 months or less 48,015 124,639 37,149 97,504
2-12 months 223,267 178,865 4,167 -
271,282 303,504 41,316 97,504
Total borrowings 361,970 504,749 82,225 97,504

(d) Loan from related parties are unsecured and bear an interest of 3.30%-4.20% (2020: 2.85%-5.00%) p.a.
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19. BORROWINGS (CONT'D)
(e) The effective inferest rates at the end of reporting period were as follows: 2021 2020
% %
Bank loans - MUR 2.90-6.00 2.65-4.35
Bank loans - EURO 3.36-4.35 3.74-3.90
Loans from related companies 3.30-4.20 2.85-5.00
Other loans - MUR - 7.50
Other loans - USD 8.00 8.00
Bank overdrafts 3.54-9.45 3.49-11.00
(f) The carrying amounts of the Group's and the Company's borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2021 2020 2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Rupee 148,563 239,179 57,117 60,493
Euro 147,119 185,129 25,108 37,011
US Dollar 43,655 58,016 - -
Kenya Shilling - 14,516 - -
Othiers 22,633 7,906 - -
361,970 504,749 82,225 97,504
{g) The carrying amounts of borrowings are not materially different from the fair value.
20. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
Amount recognised in the statements of financial position as non-current liabilities:
THE GROUP
2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000
Defined pension benefits (note 20(a)(ii)) 28,456 31,414
Other post retirement benefits (note 20(b)(i)) 29,631 58,046
' 58,087 89,460
Amount charged to profit or loss:
Defined pension benefits (note 20(a)(vi}) 1,980 1,630
Other post retirement benefits (note 20(b)(iii)) 7,933 6,665

9,013 8,295
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20. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D)
Amount charged/(credited) to other comprehensive income: THE GROUP
2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000
Defined pension benefits (note 20(a)(vii)) (2,689) 8,984
Other post retirement benefits (note 20(b){iv)) (32,057) 7,751
(34,746) 16,735
(a) Defined pension benefits
(i The Group contributes a defined contribution plan, the Rogers Money Purchase Retirement Fund (RMPRF) which is
governed by the employment laws of Mauritius, to which have been transferred the pension benefits of afl employees
who were members of a self-administered defined benefit superannuation fund {DBSF). These employees contributing
regularly to the RMPRF, have been given the guarantee by their respective employers that their benefits at the age of
sixty, under the RMPRF would not be less than the benefits provided under the ex DBSF. The potential liability under
the above guarantee is funded by additional employers’ contributions and has been included in the provision made for
retirernent benefit obligations.
In addition to the above, three subsidiaries have defined benefit plans which are funded and where the plan assets are
held by Swan Life Ltd.
The most recent actuarial valuations of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligations were
carricd out at Tune 30, 2021 by AON Hewitt Ltd (Actuarial Valuer). The present value of the defined benefit
obligations, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit
Method.
(i) The amounts recognised in the statements of financial position are as follows: THE GROUP
2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000
Present value of defined benefit obligations 35,988 40,377
Fair value of plan assets (7,332) (8,963)
Liability in the statements of financial position 28,456 31,414
(iii) The reconciliation of the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined benefit liability is as follows:

THE GROUP
2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000
At July 1, 31,414 23,016
Charged to profit or loss 1,980 1,630
{Credited)/charged to other comprehensive income (2,689) 8,984
Employer contributions (2,249) {2,216)

At June 30, 28,456 31,414
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20. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D)
(a) Defined pension benefits (cont'd)
(iv) The movement in the defined benefit obligations over the year is as follows: THE GROUP
2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000
At Tuly 1, 40,377 30,562
Interest expense 1,328 3,814
Current service cost 482 311
Past service cost 431 -
Benefits paid (4,011) (3,743)
Liability experience loss 2,020 1,247
Liability (gain)/loss due to change in financial assumptions (4,628) 8,186
Liability gain due to change in demographic assumptions {11) -
At June 30, 35,988 40,377
(v} The movement in the fair value of plan assets of the year is as follows: THE GROUP
2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000
At July 1, 8,963 7,544
Interest income 261 2,495
Employer contributions 68 63
Benefits paid (1,830) (1,590)
Return on plan assets excluding interest income 70 449
At June 30, 7,532 8,963
(vi) The amounts recognised in profit or loss are as follows: THE GROUP
2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000
Current service cost 482 311
Past service cost 431 -
Net interest on net defined benefit liability 1,067 1,319
Total included in "employee benefit expense” (note 26) 1,980 1,630
Actual return on plan assets 331 2,944
(vii} The amounts recognised in other comprehensive income are as follows: THE GROUP
2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000
Return on plan assets above interest income 70 (449}
Liability experience loss 2,020 1,247
Liability (gain)/toss due to change in financial assumptions {4,628) 8,186
Liability gain due to change in demographic assumptions (11) -

Total included in other comprehensive income

(2,689) 8,984
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20. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D)
(a) Defined pension benefits (cont'd)
(viii) The allocation of plan assets at the end of the reporting period for each category, is as follows:
THE GROUP
2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs000
Equity - overseas quoted 1,395 1,882
Equity - local quoted 1,927 3,137
Local - unquoted 66 -
Debt - overseas quoted - 807
Debt - overseas unquoted 1,129 -
Diebt - local quoted 399 -
Debt - local unquoted 1,063 2,330
Property - local 133 179
Cash and other 1,420 628
Total 7,532 8,963
(ix) The principal actuarial assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were:
THE GROUP
2021 2020
Discount rate 4.7% 3.5%
Future salary increases 0.0%-3.0% 0.0%-2.5%
Future pension increases 1.0% 0.0%
Average retirement age (ARA) 60-05 years  60-65 years
Average life expectancy for:
-Male at ARA. 13-19.5 years 13-19.5 years
-Female at ARA 14-24.2 years 14-242 years
(x) Sensitivity analysis on defined benefit obligations at the end of the reporting date:
THE GROUP
2021 2020
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Discount rate (1% movement) 13,787 5,906 16,385 7,212

An increase/decrease of 1% in other principal actuarial assumptions would not have a material impact on defined
benefit obligations at the end of the reporting period.

The sensitivity above has been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on net defined benefit
obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method.

The sensitivity analysis may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely
that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.



VELOGIC HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
91
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2021

20. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D)
(a) Defined pension benefits (cont’d)

(xi} The defined benefit pension plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest risk, longevity
risk and salary risks.

Investment risk
The plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to government bond yields; if the return
on plan assets is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit and if it is higher, it will create a plan surplus.

Interest risk
A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this may be partially offset by an increase
in the relurn on the plan's debt investmenls and a decrease in inflationary pressures on salary and pension increases.

Longevity risk
The plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and
after their employment. An increase in the life expeciancy of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.

Salary risk

The plan liability is calculated by reference to the future projected salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in
the salary of the plan participants above the assumed rate will increase the plan liability whereas an increase below the
assumed rate will decrease the liability.

(xii} The funding requirements are based on the pension fund's actuarial measurement framework set out in the funding
policies of the plan. The funding policy is to pay contributions to an external legal entity at the rate recommended by
the entify’s actuaries.

(xiii) Expected coniributions to post-employment benefit plans for the next financial year are Rs 1.194 miilion (2020: Rs
2.285 million) for the Group.

(xiv) The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation ranges between 2 - 12 years at the end of the reporting
period.

(b) Other post refirement benefits

Other post retirement benefits comprise mainly of gratuity on retirement payable under The Workers' Rights Act 2019

and other benefits.
(i) The reconciliation of the opening balances to the closing balances is as follows: THE GROUP
2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000

At July 1, 58,046 45,440
Charged to profit or loss 7,933 6,665
{Credited)/charged to other comprehensive income (32,057) 1,751
Employer contributions {4,291) (1,810)

At June 30, 29,631 58,046
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20. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D)
{(b) Other post retirement benefits (cont'd)
{vi) Sensitivity analysis on defined benefit obligations at the end of the reporting date:
THE GROUP
2021 2020
hicrease Decrease Increase Decrease
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Discount rate (1% movement) 5,681 4,085 (16,830) 11,698

An increase/decrease of 1% in other principal actuarial assumptions would not have a material impact on the retirement

gratuity at the end of the reporting period.

The sensitivity above has been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on the retirement gratuity as
aresult of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. The present value of the
retirement gratuity has been calculated using the projected unit credit method.

The sensitivity analysis may not be representative of the actual change in the retirement gratuity as it is unlikely that the

change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

(vii) The funding policy is to pay confributions to an external legal entity at the rate recommended by the entity’s actuaries.
Expected contributions to post-employment benefit plans for the next financial year are Rs 0.727 million (2020; Rs
1.245 million) for the Group.

{viii) The weighted average duration of the retirement gratuity ranges between 2 - 29 years at the end of the reporting period.

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2021 2020 2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Trade payables 411,537 222,595 - -
Accruals 340,190 306,033 0,328 -
Other payables 97,847 86,088 2,600 1,050
Amounts due to related parties (note 33) 1,612 681 26,880 26,880
851,186 615,397 38,808 27,930

(a) The carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate their fair values.
(b) Amount due to related parties are unsecured, free of interest and repayable on demand.

(c) Accruals and other payables include provision for end of year bonus, performance bonus and VAT payable.
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20. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D)
(b) Other post retirement benefits (cont'd)
(ii) The movement in the defined benefit obligations over the year is as follows: THE GROUP
2021 2020
Rs000 Rs'000
At July 1, 58,046 45,440
Current service cost 4,987 3,898
Interest expense 1,986 2,506
Past service cost 9260 261
Liability experience gain (7,262) (593)
Liability experience gain due to change in demographic assumptions (21,855) -
Liability {gain)/loss due to change in financial assumptions (2,940) 8,344
Benefits paid (4,291) (1,810)
At June 30, 29,631 58,046
(iii) The amounts recognised in profit or loss are as follows: THE GROUP
2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000
Current service cost 4,987 3,898
Past service cost 260 261
Net interest expense 1,286 2,506
Total included in "employee benefit expense” (note 26) 7,933 6,665
(iv) The amounts recognised in other comprehensive income are as follows: THE GROUP
2021 2020
Rs"000 Rs'000
Liability experience gain (7,262) (593)
Liability experience gain due to change in demographic assumptions (21,855) -
Liability (gain)/loss due to change in financial assumptions (2,940) 8,344
Total included in other comprehensive income (32,057) 7,751
{v) The principal actuarial assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were:
THE GROUP
2021 2020
Discount rate 4.65% 3.50%-5.60%
Future salary increases (staff/workers) 1.0%-3.0% 2.5%-4.0%
Future pension increases 0.0% 0.0%-0.5%
Average retirement age (ARA) 65 years 65 years
Average life expectancy for:
-Male at ARA 15.9 years  13-15.9 years
-Female at ARA 16.6-24.2 years 14-20 years
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22. CONTRACT LIABILITIES THE GROUP
2021 2020
Rs"000 Rs'000
AtJuly 1, 20,039 42,699
Amounts included in contract liabilities that was
recognised as revenue during the period (20,039) (42,699)
Cash received in advance of performance
and not recognised as revenue during the period 14,897 20,039
At June 30, 14,897 20,039
(2) Contract liabilities include advances received for port services, packing, shipping and freight forwarding services for
which performance obligations was not yet satisfied at end of the reporting period. The outstanding balances of these
accounts decreased in June 2021 as less advances were received from customers.
(b) Contract liabilities are now presented separately on the Statement of Financial Position in accordance with IFRS 15
presentation requirements. This item was presented previously in trade and other payables (note 21).
23. DIVIDENDS
(a) The movement in the statements of financial position is as follows:
Non-
(i 2021 Equity controlling
holders interests Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Balance at July 1, 2020 15,000 225 15,225
Dividend declared during the year 41,000 5,332 46,332
Dividend paid (37,000) (3,601) (40,601)
Balance at June 30, 2021 19,000 1,956 20,956
(i) 2020 Non-
Equity controlling
holders interests Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Balance at July 1, 2019 20,000 2,375 22,375
Dividend declared during the year 39,350 3,162 42,512
Dividend paid (44,350) (5,312) (49,662)
Balance at June 30, 2020 15,000 225 15,225
(b) Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year: THE GROUP AND
THE COMPANY
2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000
Interim dividend for the year ended June 30, 2021
of Rs 0.24 per share (2020: Rs 0.26) 22,000 24,350
Final dividend for the year ended June 30, 2021
of Rs 0.20 (2020: 0.16) per share 19,000 15,000
41,000 39,350
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24, TOTAL INCOME THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2021 2020 2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Revenue from sale of services 3,707,755 3,073,424 - -
Commission and other income 49,568 45,558 - -
Dividend income - - 63,176 39,136
Interest income 3,146 3,748 1,196 1,086
3,760,469 3,122,730 64.372 40,222
(a) Disaggregation of revenue from sale of services THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2021 2020 2021 2020
Product type Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs"000 Rs'000
Freight forwarding 2,778,425 2,180,449 - “
Courier services 255,649 187,325 - -
Packing of special sugars 126,128 73,630 - -
Port related and transport services 759,945 758,763 - -
Shipping services 45,201 67,690 - -
Warehousing 103,191 135,938 - -
4,068,539 3,403,795 - -
Inter-segment revenue (360,784) (330,371) - -
Revenue from contract with external customers 3,707,755 3,073,424 - -
(b) Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time 3,707,755 3,073,424 - -
Over time - - - -
3,707,755 3,073,424 - -
25. EXPENSES BY NATURE THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2021 2020 2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Cost of services rendered 2,387,564 1,898,731 - -
Raw materials and consumables used 52,378 35,845 - -
Total direct costs 2,439,042 1,934,576 - -
IT expenses 15,861 15,676 - -
Telecommunication expenses 12,006 11,731 - -
Advertising and promotion . 3,879 2,895 2,000 -
Professional fees 38,027 21,025 8,416 773
Rental expense 9,468 11,524 - -
Rates, taxes and licences 8,926 6,058 - -
Insurance 15,528 11,664 - -
Office supplies 8,490 7,343 - -
QOverseas travelling - Business 1,588 7,662 - -
Comrmnissions payable 1,251 1,494 - -
Miscellaneous expenses 72,796 66,946 319 169
Total direct costs and other expenses 2,627,762 2,098,594 10,735 942
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26. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE THE GROU?P THE COMPANY
2021 2020 2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Wages and salaries, including
termination benefits 082,317 624,562 - -
Pension costs - defined contribution plans 8.826 11,684 - -
Pension costs - defined benefit
plans (note 20(a)(vi)) 1,980 1,630 - -
Pension costs - other post retirement
benefits (note 20(b)(iii)) 7,933 6,665 - -
701,056 644,541 - -
Wage subsidy
In response to the COVID-19 coronavirus pandemic, in March 2020 the government of Mauritius introduced a wage
subsidy programme (Government Wage Assistance Scheme (GWAS)) to ensure that all employees are duly paid their
salary for the month of March 202( to May 2020 and in March 2021.
Under the scheme, a business entity in the private sector is entitled to receive, for the month of March 2020, in respect
to its wage bill, an amount equivalent to 15 days” basic wage bill for all of its employees drawing a monthly basic wage
of up to Rs 50,000 subject to a cap of Rs 12,500 of assistance per employee. For the month of April 2020 and May
2020, a business was eligible to receive an additional funding equivalent to one month’s basic wage bill for its
employees drawing a monthly basic wage of up to Rs 50,000 subject to a cap of Rs 25,000 of assistance per employee.
For the month of March 2021, the monthly allowance was equivalent to one month basic wage of all employees
drawing a monthly wage of up to Rs 50,375 capped at Rs 25,375 of assistance pcr employee.
The Group has received an amount of Rs 4.216 million (2020: Rs 30.097 million) from the Government Wage
Assistance Scheme. The Group presents grants related to income as 'employee benefit expenses' in the statement of
profit or loss.
27. FINANCE COSTS THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2021 2020 2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Interest expense:
-Bank overdraft (8,338) (10,594} {2) 40
-Loans from holding company (4,604) {5,011) - -
-Loan from subsidiary company - - (965) (866)
-Bank loans repayable by instalments (6,523) (10,252) 976) (918)
-Other loans not repayable by instalments (4,253) (4,372) - -
-Leases {17,853) (20,121) - -
{41,571) (50,350) (1,943) (1,824)

Interest on bank loans repayable by instalments and other loans not repayable by instalments have been disclosed
separately in 2021 to provide further understanding of the interest incurred by the Group.
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28. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2021 2020 2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs"000 Rs'000
Profit before taxation is arrived at after:
Crediting:
Profit on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 3,752 5,700 - -
and charging:
Impairment of financial assets (note 12(a)) 9,800 27,907 - -
Lease rentals 9,468 11,524 - -
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment:
-owned assets 88,964 84,827 - -
-right-of-use assets 95,500 94,866 - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 2,931 10,183 - -
Employee benefit expense (note 26) 701,656 644,541 - -
29. EARNINGS PER SHARE THE GROUP
2021 2020
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the parent Rs'000 114,943 74,090

Weighted average number of shares in issue

Earnings per share

There is no dilutive instruments at June 30, 2021 (2020: none).

93,515,565 93,515,565

1.23 0.79
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30. NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2021 2020 2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
{a) Cash generated from/(abserbed in) operations
Profit before taxation 213,213 142,870 48,813 37,644
Adjustments for:
Depreciation on property, plant
and equipment (PPE) (note 5) 88,964 84,827 - -
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (3,752) (5,700) - -
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (note 6} 95,500 94,866 - -
Loss on disposal of right-of-use assets 923 - - -
Effect of modification to lease terms 844 - - -
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 7) 9,931 10,183 - -
Assets scrapped on PPE (note 3) - 150 - -
Assets scrapped on intangible assets (note 7} - 2,548 - -
Retirement benefit obligations 3,373 4,269 - -
Dividend income - - (63,176) (39,136)
Interest income (3,1406) (3,748) (3,196} (1,086)
Interest expense 41,57 50,350 1,943 1,824
447,421 380,615 (13,616) (754)
Changes in working capitai:
- decrease in inventories 9,599 4,858 - -
- decrease in trade receivables 931 133,155 - -
- (increase)/decrease in contract assets™® (7,841) 4,626 - -
- (increase)/decrease in financial
assets at amortised cost¥ (36,392) 17,268 19 (19)
- increase in prepayments (47,431) (5,152) 395 (422)
- increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables* 235,789 (33,773) 10,878 599
- decrease in contract Jiabilities* (5.142) (22,660) - -
Cash generated from/(absorbed in) operations 590,934 478,937 (2,324) (596)

* See note 13{c) and note 22(b).
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30. NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONT'D)
(b) Cash and cash equivalents THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2021 2020 2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Cash in hand and at bank 473,681 329,639 6,085 5,790

Cash and cash equivalents and bank overdraft include the following for the purpose of the statements of cash flows.

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2021 2020 2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Cash and cash equivalents 473,681 329,639 6,085 5,790
Bank overdrafis (40,597) (91,635) - (12,026)
433,084 238,004 6,085 (6,236)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:
THE GROUP
Bank and Loan from Lease
i 2021 other loans related parties liabilities Total
Rs'G00 Rs'G00 Rs'000 Rs'000
At July 1, 2020 262,735 150,379 354,651 767,765
Cash flows - Proceeds 170,519 - - 170,51%
Cash flows - Capital payments (243,707) (38,041) (95,693) (378,041)
Cash flows - Interest payments - - (17,853) (17,853)
Non-cash changes:
- additions - - 64,486 64,486
- interest accrued - - 17,853 17,853
- foreign exchange movements 20,088 - 5,795 25,883
- effect of modification
to lease terms - - (63,471) (63,471)
At June 30, 209,635 111,738 265,768 587,141
(i) 2020
At July 1, 2019 370,337 37,500 48.197 456,034
Cash flows - Proceeds 188,106 126,250 - 314,356
Cash flows - Capital payments (310,867} (13,371) (84,644) (408,882)
Cash flows - Interest payments (14,540) - (17.485) (32,025)
Non-cash changes:
- recognised on adoption
of IFRS 16 - - 356,538 356,538
- additions - - 29,494 20,494
- interest accrued 933 - 17,485 18,418
- foreign exchange movements 25,056 - 5,066 30,122
- on acquisition of subsidiary 3,710 - - 3,710
At June 30, 2020 262,735 150,379 354,651 767,765
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30. NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONT'D)
(d) Reconciliation of Habilities arising from financing activities: (cont'd)
THE COMPANY
Bank and Loan frem
(i) 2621 other loans related parties Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
At July 1, 2020 24,985 60,493 85,478
Cash flows - Proceeds 17,959 3,500 21,459
Cash flows - Capital payments (16,876) (6,876) (23,752)
Non-cash changes:
- foreign exchange movements (960) - {960)
At June 30, 2021 25,108 57,117 82,225
{iv)y 2020
At July 1, 2019 - 59,493 59,493
Cash flows - Proceeds 24,231 19,000 43231
Cash flows - Capital payments (1,730) (18,000) {19,730)
Non-cash changes:
- foreign exchange movements 2,484 - 2,484
At June 30, 2020 24,985 60,493 85,478
31. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Operating segments are components of the Group about which separate financial information is available. They are
reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Executive Officers, for both

performance measuring and resource allocation.

Operating segments that do not meet any of the quantitative thresholds of 10% reported revenue or profit or assets are

included as management determined these segments are based on major product lines.

There are four main reportable segments:

Port services - port related, transport services and warehousing;
Packing - packing of special sugars;

Shipping - shipping services;

Freight forwarding - Courier services and freight forwarding services.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant
accounting policies. The Group evaluates performance on the basis of profit or loss and account for intersegment sales

and transfers as if the sales or transfer were to third parties, that is, at current market prices.
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31. BUSINESS SEGMENTS (CONT'D)

{(a) 2021 Port Freight

services Packing Shipping forwarding Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000

Total segment revenues 823,327 126,744 108,065 3,312,061 4,370,197
Inter-segment revenues (145,583) {11,892) (12,719) (439,534) {609,728)
Revenues from
external customers 677,744 114,852 05,346 2,872,527 3,760,469
Segment results 30,362 7,860 40,735 107,799 237,256
Net impairment loss
on financial assets 1,607 (1,847) 1,669 (11,229) (9,800)
Finance income 1,616 7,534 2,133 16,045 27,328
Finance costs (16,492) (1,959 {166) (22,954) (41,571)
Profit before tax 67,593 11,588 44,371 89,001 213,213
Taxation (13.,008) (6,026) (5,645) {37.482) {62,161)
Profit for the year 54,585 5,562 38,726 52,179 151,052
Assets 1,453,467 101,347 92,988 1,853,012 3,500,814
Liabilities 496,776 62,620 54,511 1,076,149 1,690,056
Capital expenditure:
-property, plant and equipment 54,808 552 503 39,540 95,403
-intangible asscts - 74 - 1,273 1,347
Depreciation oft
-property, plant and equipment 66,013 857 304 21,790 88,904
-right-of-use assets 58,280 7,034 813 29,373 95,500
Amortisation of intangible assets 3,549 69 941 5,372 9,931
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31. BUSINESS SEGMENTS (CONT'D)

(b 2020 Port Sugar Freight

services packing Shipping forwarding Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000

Total segment revenues 947,040 73,688 75,299 2,544,259 3,640,286
Inter-segment revenues {171,710) - {2,983) (342,863) (517.556)
Revenues from
extemal customers 775,330 73,688 72,316 2,201,396 3,122,730
Segment results 180,427 (3.979) 21,376 (8,105) 189,719
Net impairment loss
on financial assets 2,300 921 (1,191) (29,937) (27,907
Finance income 3,702 2,519 1,182 24,005 31,408
Finance costs (24,278) (475) (141} (25,456) (50,350)
Profit before tax 162,151 (1,014) 21,226 (39,493) 142,870
Taxation (22,909) 1,151 (2,537) (14,085) (38,380)
Profit for the year 139,242 137 18,689 (53,578) 104,490
Assets 1,590,644 44,705 55,720 1,682,493 3,373,562
Liabilities 618,454 22,028 48,533 1,022,963 1,711,978
Capital expenditure:
-property, plant and equipment 59,383 1,229 466 36,020 97,098
-intangible assets - 347 - 13,261 13,608
Depreciation of:
-property, plant and equipment 62,459 1,335 354 20,679 84,827
-right-of-use assets 63,920 6,248 734 23,964 94,866

Amortisation of intangible assets 3,832 17 941 5,393 10,183
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32

(@)

®

i)

(iii)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Acquisition of subsidiaries - 2020

On July 1, 2019, a subsidiary, Velogic Limited, acquired 50% of the share capital of Global Air Cargo Services Ltd

for Rs 0.722 million and obtained the control of Global Air Cargo Services Ltd, whose principal activity is freight

forwarding. As a result of the acquisition, the Group is expected to increase its presence in the market. It also expects

to reduce costs through economies of scale,

The goodwill of Rs 1.602 million arising from the acquisition is aftributable to the acquisition of a diversified

customer base and economies of scale expected from combining the courier operations of the Group and Global Air

Cargo Services Ltd. None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible from income tax purposes.

Consideration

At July 1, 2019

Cash

Contingent consideration {liability)
Total consideration

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and

liabilities assumed

Property, plant and equipment
Trade receivables

Current tax assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Deferred tax liabilities

Total identifiable net Habilities

Non-controlling interest
Goodwill (note 7)

Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries

Consideration paid in cash

Less: cash and cash equivalents balances acquired

THE GROUP

Rs'000

500
222
722

THE GROUP

Rs'000

359

3,089

35

237
(1,762)
(3,710)
(8)

(1,760)

880

1,602

THE GROUP

Rs'000
500

(237)

263
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32.

(a)
(iv)

(b)

(©)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONT'D)

Acquisition of subsidiaries - 2020 (cont'd)

The revenue included in the consolidated financial statements from July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 contributed by
Global Air Cargo Services Ltd was Rs 23,654 miilion. The acquisition also contributed losses of Rs 1.168 million
over the same period.

Acquisition of additional interest in VK Logistics Ltd - 2020

On July 1, 2019, VK Logistics Ltd, a subsidiary, acquired an additional 20% interest in Gencargo Transport Limited,
increasing its ownership from 80% to 100%. The carrying amount of Gencargo Transport Limited's net assets in the
consolidated financial statements on the date of acquisition was Rs 25.301 million. The Group recognised a decrease
in non-controlling interest of Rs 5.272 million. The purchase consideration paid was of Rs 11.650 million.

The following summarises the effect of changes in the Group's ownership interest in Gencargo Transport Limited:

THE GROU?P
2020
Rs'000
Parent's ownership interest at beginning of period 10,323
Effect of increase in parent's ownership interest 2,581
Total comprehensive income for the year 5,378
Parent's ownership interest at end of peried 18,282

Acquisition of additional shares in Logistics Solution Ltd - 2020

On June 30, 2020, the Company subscribed to 1,652,072 issued by Logistics Solution Ltd. The other shareholders in
Logistics Solution Ltd did not subscribe to the share issue. Hence, the direct holding in Logistics Solution Ltd
increased from 98.49% to 98.97%.

The following summarises the effect of changes in the Group's ownership interest in Logistics Solutions Ltd:

THE GROUP
2020
Rs'000
Parent's ownership interest at before issue of shares 779,512
Loan from parent capitalised 165,242
Effect of increase in parent's ownership interest 2,039
Parent's ownership interest at end of period 046,793
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D)
(¢) Key management personnel compensation THE GROUP
2021 2020
Rs'000 Rs'000
Salaries and short term employee benefits 103,691 100,603
Post-employment benefits 17,947 15,055
121,638 115,658
(d}  For the year ended June 30, 2021, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivable relating to amounts

34.

35,

36.

owed by related parties (2020: Nil).
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At June 30, 2021, the Company had contingent liabilities in respect of bank and other guarantees and other matters
arising in the ordinary course of business from which it is anticipated that no material liabilities would arise. The
Company has given guarantees in the ordinary course of business, amounting to Rs 751.276 million (2020: Rs §94.589
million) to third parties.

COMMITMENTS

There was no capital expenditure for property, plant and equipment contracted for at the end of the reporting period
but not yet incurred for the Group (2020: Rs 7.852 million).

GOING CONCERN

The Coronavirus disease 2019 ("COVID-19") outbreak has caused extensive disruptions to businesses operation
around the globe. On March 11, 2020, COVID-19 was labelled as pandemic by the World Health Organisation. The
outbreak of COVID-19 resulted in associated risks and the need for further judgements and assumptions.

Changes to the estimates and outcomes that have been applied in the measurement of the Group's assets and liabilities

may arise in the future due to;
-the dynamic and evolving nature of COVID-19;

-the limited experience of the economic and financial consequences of such a pandemic; and
-the short duration between the declaration of the pandemic and the preparation of these financial statements

Other than the apparent conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period, the impact of events arising after the

reporting period will be accounted for in future reporting periods.

The Group operates mainly in the Logistics and Transportation sector across 7 countries including Mauritius. Tt has

been considered the impact of the COVID-19 outbreak on its operations.
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36.

GOING CONCERN (CONT'D)

In the Logistics served market, the Air freight and Courier activities have been affected by the closure of the airporl
and is expected to impact revenues and profits. Other activities of the Group were not directly impacted but will suffer
indirect consequences of the pandemic.

The Group and the Company have generated a profit of Rs 151.052 million and Rs 48.506 million respectively for the
year ended June 30, 2021 (2020: Rs 104.490 million for the Group and Rs 37,680 million for the Company). As at that
date, the Group and the Company have positive net assets of Rs 1.811 billion and Rs 984.030 million respectively
(June 30, 2020: Rs 1.662 billion for the Group and Rs 1.034 billion for the Company). Moreover, as at June 30, 2021,
the Company's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs 16.275 million (June 30, 2020: Rs 64.640 million).
Included in the current liabilities are amount due to related parties amounting to Rs §3.997 million (2020: Rs 97.373
million). The Company has also received a letter of support from its holding company, Rogers and Company Limited.
The holding company confirms that it will continue to provide full support, in proportion fo its shareholding in the

Company, during the next twelve months from date of approval of the consolidated and separate financial statements.

The entity's operations and that of its subsidiaries have not been significantly impacted by Covid-19 due to the
industries they operate. The main source of revenues to the Company is dividend income which is sustainable due to
the profitability situation of the subsidiaries. Moreover, the expenses of the Company are not significant and the
Company has the resources available to settle its current and future debts. Based on this evaluation, the directors have
made assessment of the Company's ahility to continue as a going comer *2king into account all available information
about the future including the analysis of the possible impacts in relation to COVID-19, which is at least, but not
limited to, twelve months from the date of approval of these financial statements and confirm that they have not
identified events or conditions that may cast significant doubt in the Company's ability it continue as a going concemn.

The Group will however continue to monitor the impact that COVID-19 may have on its operations and reflect the
consequences as appropriate on its accounting and reporting.

Cash flow and liguiditv

The Group debt to Equity ratio was 9% at 30 June 2021 compared to 32% at 30 June 2020. The group has taken the
following measures to improve cash flow and liquidity management:

-Eligible subsidiaries have obtained short term moratorium on the repayment of bank loans and interest
“Bach subsidiary monitors closely its capital expenditure and the lifetime of some assets have been extended
-Some covenants on borrowings have been breached and as a consequence those loans have been reclassified to current

liabilities. The concerned company has obtained waivers from its respective financial institutions

-Regular committee meetings ensure that the working capital is well managed, especially debtors' collection and
creditors payment due dates;

-Directly impacted subsidiaries have negotiated for extended suppliers' credit and deferred rent payment during the

lockdown period as per the Government regulatjons;
-The Group's holding company also provides financial support to certain subsidiaries in need

The above measures taken will reduce liquidity issues and increase resilience. They will help the Group to overcome
the crisis whilst continuing to invest in businesses for long term growth.
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37. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

There were no other material event after the reporting date to the date that these financial statements were authorised

for issue that warrants adjustments or disclosures in these financial statements.
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